Public Document Pack
JOINT AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE
DATE:

TUESDAY, 11 AUGUST 2020
1.00 PM

VENUE:

VIRTUAL - TEAMS MEETING
Members

Conservative
Melanie Barrett
James Caston
Mary McLaren
Dave Muller (Co-Chair)

Independent
Alastair McCraw
Liberal Democrat
Bryn Hurren (Co-Chair)
Mike Norris

Green Party
Oliver Amorowson
Robert Lindsey
John Matthissen

AGENDA
PART 1
MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PRESS AND PUBLIC PRESENT
Page(s)
1

SUBSTITUTES AND APOLOGIES
Any Member attending as an approved substitute to report giving
his/her name and the name of the Member being substituted.

2

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members to declare any interests as appropriate in respect of items to
be considered at this meeting.

3

JAC/19/22 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD
ON 27TH JULY 2020
To Follow

4

TO RECEIVE NOTIFICATION OF PETITIONS IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE COUNCIL'S PETITION SCHEME

5

QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC
To consider questions from, and provide answers to, the public in
relation to matters which are relevant to the business of the meeting
and of which due notice has been given in accordance with the
Committee and Sub-Committee Procedure Rules.

6

QUESTIONS BY COUNCILLORS
To consider questions from, and provide answer to, Councillors on
Page 1

any matter in relation to which the Committee has powers or duties
and of which due notice has been given in accordance with the
Committee and Sub-Committee Procedure Rules.
7

JAC/19/23 SIGNIFICANT RISK REGISTER REPORT AND RISK
MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY

5 - 28

Report from Corporate Manager – Internal Audit
8

JAC/19/24 TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN FOR 2019/20

29 - 66

Report from Corporate Manager – Financial Services
9

JAC/19/25 CONSULATION ON THE NEW MODEL CODE OF
CONDUCT

67 - 106

Report from the Monitoring Officer
10

JAC/19/26 FORWARD PLAN

107 - 110

Report by the Corporate Manager – Democratic Services attached.

Page 2

Introduction to Public Meetings
Babergh/Mid Suffolk District Councils are committed to Open Government. The
proceedings of this meeting are open to the public, apart from any confidential or exempt
items which may have to be considered in the absence of the press and public.

Protocol for Virtual Meetings
Live Streaming:
1. The meeting will be held on TEAMS and speakers will be able to join via invite only.
Any person who wishes to speak at the meeting must contact Committee Services
at: committees@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk at least 24 hours before the start of the
meeting.
2. The meeting will be live streamed and will be available to view on the Council’s
YouTube page as detailed below:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCSWf_0D13zmegAf5Qv_aZSg
Recording of proceedings:
1. Proceedings will be conducted in video format.
2. A second Governance Officer will be present and will control the TEAMS call and
Livestreaming.
3. Members should display the Corporate Background whilst in attendance at formal
meetings; the working together logo should be used for joint meetings.
4. If you are experiencing slow refresh rates and intermittent audio you should turn off
incoming video to improve your connection to the meeting (If this also does not
work please turn off your own camera).
Roll Call:
1. A roll call of all Members present will be taken during the Apologies for
Absence/Substitution to confirm all Members are present at the meeting.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:
1. A Councillor declaring a disclosable pecuniary interest will not be permitted to
participate further in the meeting or vote on the item. Where practicable the
Councillor will leave the virtual meeting, including by moving to a ‘lobby’ space and
be invited to re-join the meeting by the Committee Officer at the appropriate time.
Where it is not practicable for the Councillor to leave the virtual meeting, the
Governance Officer will ensure that the Councillor’s microphone is muted for the
duration of the item.
Questions and Debate:
1. Once an item has been introduced, the Chair will ask if there are any questions.
Members of the Committee will be asked to use the “Hands Up” function within
teams. The Chair will then ask Members to speak.

Page 3

2. Any Councillors present who are not part of the Committee will then be invited to
ask questions by using the “Hands up function” within teams. The Chair will then
ask Members to speak.
3. At the end of the questions the Chair will ask Members whether they have any
further questions before entering into debate.
4. In the instance where a Member of the Committee would like to formally make a
proposal, they should raise their hand using the Hands Up function. At this point the
Chair would go directly to them and take the proposal. Once the proposal has been
made the Chair would immediately ask if there was a seconder to the Motion. If
there is it would become the substantive Motion and the Chair would again continue
down the list of Councillors until there is no further debate.
5. Upon completion of any debate the Chair will move to the vote.
Voting:
1. Once a substantive motion is put before the committee and there is no further
debate then a vote will be taken.
2. Due to circumstances the current voting by a show of hands would be impractical as such the Governance Officer will conduct the vote by roll call. The total votes for
and against and abstentions will be recorded in the minutes not the individual votes
of each Councillor. Except where a recorded vote is requested in accordance with
the Rules of Procedure.
3. The Governance officer will then read out the result for the Chair to confirm.
4. A Councillor will not be prevented from voting on an item if they have been
disconnected from the virtual meeting due to technical issues for part of the
deliberation. If a connection to a Councillor is lost during a regulatory meeting, the
Chair will stop the meeting to enable the connection to be restored. If the
connection cannot be restored within a reasonable time, the meeting will proceed,
but the Councillor who was disconnected will not be able to vote on the matter
under discussion as they would not have heard all the facts.
Confidential items:
1. The Public and Press may be Excluded from the meeting by resolution in
accordance with normal procedural rules. The Governance Officer will ensure that
any members of the public and press are disconnected from the meeting.

Page 4

Agenda Item 7
BABERGH DISTRICT COUNCIL and MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL
TO:

Joint Audit and Standards
Committee

REPORT NUMBER:

OFFICER:

Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit and Data
Protection

DATE OF MEETING: 11 August 2020

JAC/19/23

SIGNIFICANT RISK REGISTER REPORT AND RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report details the Significant Risks as of July 2020 and the work undertaken
around risk management processes since April 2019.

1.2

Risk management as an activity must accomplish the following tasks: identify
concerns; identify risks and risk owners; evaluate the risks as to likelihood and
consequences; assess the options for accommodating the risk and prioritise the risk
management efforts.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That the contents of this report, supported by Appendix A and B, be noted.
REASON FOR DECISION

To provide assurances that risk management processes in place are robust and effective
3.

KEY INFORMATION

3.1

Both Councils are committed to adopting good practice in its management of risk to
ensure retained risk is of an acceptable and tolerable level in order to maximise
opportunities and demonstrate it has made full consideration of the implications of
risk to the delivery and achievement of outcomes.

3.2

The Councils are clear that the responsibility for managing risk belongs to everyone
and that there needs to be an appropriate level of understanding of the nature of risk
by all stakeholders.

3.3

The Councils consider and counter risk across a broad range of areas supported by
an approved Risk Management Strategy. As part of good governance, the Councils
manage and maintain a register of its Significant risks which are linked to the
Councils’ priorities and regularly reviewed by the Senior Leadership Team and
regularly reported to both Cabinets and annually to this Committee.

3.4

This report provides Members with details of the Significant Risks as of July 2020
(see Appendix A) and the work undertaken around risk management processes since
April 2019.

3.5

There are currently 18 risks on the register, of which risks 11 and 15 have been
separated to reflect the different levels of risk scoring between the two Councils. In
1
Page 5

summary, 10 risks have been scored as Medium; 5 have been scored as High; and
5 have been scored as Very High.
Key:

Impact / Consequence

3.6

Low score
(1-3)

Medium score
(4-6)

High score
(8-9)

V. High score
(12-16)

All Significant Risks have been plotted on the risk matrix below to provide an overview of
levels of risks currently facing the Councils.

Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Minimal

1

15 (MSDC)

11 (MSDC),
15 (BDC)
1, 2, 3, 4, 5,
6, 8, 10, 14

1

2

Highly
Unlikely

Unlikely

11 (BDC), 13,
16, 17,18

7, 9, 12

3

Probable

4
Highly
Probable

Probability / Likelihood

3.7

The risk register has been enhanced to now include Target Scores. These scores are
based on the successful completion of actions in the ‘Further Actions/Comments’
column as seen in Appendix A.

3.8

The Significant Risk Register was recently reviewed with consideration being given
to de-escalating a number of risks to operational registers where they will be
monitored at Corporate Manager level. This will be an ongoing exercise and should
reduce the number of risks on the Significant Register to a more manageable and
meaningful number.

3.9

Below are details of those risks deemed to be ‘top risks’ facing the Councils at this
point in time. These risks may not be the highest scored risks on the register but are
those that are considered to be priority by members of Senior Leadership Team.
2
Page 6

Top Risks
3.9.1 Risk no. 10 – Our data sources will not be reliable and efficient (current score 6)
Not making best use of our multiple sources of data could result in the Councils not
having a strong evidence base to support organisational decisions and assumptions.
3.9.2 Risk no.11 – We may be unable to react in a timely and effective way to financial
demands (NB This risk is specific to Babergh District Council only) (current score 12)
If the Council does not respond to their projected financial position then they may be
unable to deliver the entirety of the Joint Corporate Plan. Work is ongoing to identify
options over the next 4 years under the 3 categories of: review; remodel and reinvent.
The aim is to have a 4-year costed action plan rather than looking at just the next
year. A detailed budget challenge across all service areas to be undertaken
incorporating revenue, capital and reserves. Identifying specific areas of focus to
achieve cost reductions or additional income in-year and over the medium-term.
3.9.3 Risk no. 14 – Achievement of our strategic priorities and ambition of the New
Corporate Plan may be impaired (current score 6)
Current organisational change, available skills, resources and demand for our
services may mean we may be unable to achieve our strategic ambitions within our
desired timescales and not able to meet our communities and stakeholders
expectations. Mitigating actions include the development of a programmes and
project approach; development of People Strategy and action plan; development of
strategies, key policies/procedures; realignment of roles/responsibilities.
3.9.4 Risk no. 16 (NEW RISK) – The Councils will not be carbon neutral by 2030 (current
score 12)
Without adequate funding and industry solutions developed to take advantage of (e.g.
alternative fuelled refuse trucks), the Councils may not be carbon neutral by 2030
resulting in the motion not being met and the Councils actively contributing to climate
decline. Task force groups are developing robust set of options for the Cabinet to
consider and will continue to work alongside our peers. Work to begin immediately
on reducing impact of existing processes.
3.9.5 Risk no. 17 and 18 (second peak in COVID-19) (NEW RISKS) – The Councils
become financially inviable (current scores 12)
The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on the Councils’ finances –
loss of income; delayed collection of income; and increases in expenditure. The
Councils have quickly mobilised an emergency response structure and now working
on the recovery phase, which is being monitored by the Senior Leadership Team.
The Councils’ S151 Officer is closely monitoring the authorisation of emergency
expenditure and use of reserves. Three tranches of funding have been provided to
date by the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG).
Projected loss of income and additional expenditure compared against reserve levels
have be provided to give assurance to external audit on ‘going concern’ concept.
Anticipated second peak in COVID-19 – Emergency response structures which have
been stood down from the summer pandemic can be re-instigated quickly and
effectively. Critical services have been identified, staff redeployment systems are
effective and resource can be repositioned to support critical services if needed.
3
Page 7

National and local track and trace arrangements will help to control the spread of the
virus from confirmed cases to the wider staff body.
Operational risks:
3.10

As mentioned above, a number of risks have been de-escalated from the Significant
Risk Register and are now monitored via the appropriate operational register. These
registers continue to be updated and discussed between Corporate Managers and
their Assistant Directors.

Other work:
3.11

The Audit and Risk Management Services team continue to work with report authors
offering guidance and assistance with capturing and recording the appropriate risks
and scores in Committee/Cabinet reports. Once reviewed, reports are ‘signed-off’
before submission to ensure correct use of risk wording and scoring.

4.

LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN

4.1

The Corporate Plan and the Work Programme to deliver covers all of the service
delivery and development activity planned to be undertaken across both Councils in
the forthcoming years. The way we manage key corporate risks is therefore intrinsic
to the successful delivery of the plan will be embedded in each key activity, project
and programme.

5.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
As detailed in the report.

6.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.

7.

RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1

Key risks are set out below:
Risk Description

Likelihood

If risks are not Unlikely – 2
managed it will
have a detrimental
effect
on
the
Councils ability to
make the right
business decisions

Impact

Mitigation Measures

Bad – 3

The Risk Management Strategy,
training
and
reporting
arrangements
ensure
senior
management and Members can
obtain necessary assurance that
the Councils are making every
effort to reduce/eliminate risks of
not achieving its objectives

8.

CONSULTATIONS

8.1

Risk owners were consulted on their relevant risks.

9.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS
4
Page 8

9.1

There are no equality and diversity implications associated with this report.
Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) not required.

10.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

10.1

Significant Risk 16, recognises the environmental implications associated with
Climate Change and becoming carbon neutral by 2030.

11.

APPENDICES
Title

Location

(a) Significant Risk Register

Attached

(b) Risk Matrix

Attached

Authorship:
John Snell
Corporate Manager Internal Audit

Tel: 01449 724570
Email: john.snell@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk

Sponsor:
Emily Yule
Tel: 01449 724806
Assistant Director Law and Governance Email: emily.yule@babergh midsuffolk.gov.uk

5
Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

Appendix A

BABERGH AND MID SUFFOLK SIGNIFICANT RISK REGISTER - MAY 2020

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

CAUSE:
If planning permissions are not
granted for deliverable
schemes

Current land supply for MSDC - 5.66
years and for BDC - 5.67 as described in
Housing Land Supply Position
Statements published in September
2019.

RISK:
RISK
1

We may not have a sufficient,
appropriate supply of land
available in the right locations
CONSEQUENCE(S):

Page 11

We may be unable to meet
housing needs in the district.
The reputation of the Councils
may be impacted

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

9

Ongoing
Continue to determine planning applications.
2

Joint Local Plan with comprehensive site
allocations currently out to consultation
which closes 30th September 2019.
Housing Delivery Test Action Plans
adopted by both Councils in June 2019.

3

6

Stayed the
same

Continue to develop the Joint Local Plan and
its associated Infrastructure Delivery Plan.

Ongoing

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Unable to unlock future
housing growth.

Page 12

Housing targets not met,
reputation of the Councils may
be impacted

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

CAUSE:
If development does not come
forward in a timely way or sites
become stalled
RISK:
We may be unable to meet the
Governments new Housing
Delivery test
CONSEQUENCE(S):
RISK
We
may
be unable to deliver
2
the right housing in the right
locations.

Current scores

I

S

L

I

Cabinet
Members for
Planning

3

3

9

579 new dwellings built in Babergh
during 2018/19 representing 138% of
annual target.
690 new dwellings built in Mid Suffolk
during 2018/19 representing 124% of
annual target.

Develop relationships with Developers e.g.
client side panel hosted by Development
Management.
2

3

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Housing Delivery Test Action Plans
adopted by both Councils in July 2019
which continue to be monitored.
Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Further Actions / Comments

6

Stayed the
same

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

Ongoing

Continue to develop Infrastructure Delivery
Plan following feedback from Joint Local Plan
consultation
Ongoing

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

CAUSE:
Lack of engagement with
businesses and failure to
undertake data gathering and
analysis
RISK:

We may not understand the
needs and aspirations of our
businesses
RISK
3
CONSEQUENCE(S):

Page 13
We will be unable to focus our
interventions and resources in
a way which will provide the
right support

Assistant
Director Economy and
Regeneration

Cabinet
Members for
Economic
Growth

3

3

9

Implementing a two-tier method of
Business Relationship Management
/Linking our business data and intel into
FAME CRM system facilitated by NALEP/
Increasing our direct business
engagement with key sectors through
our Chambers of Commerce, Growth
Hub and other business support
organisations/networking opportunities
including joint lobbying on significant
issues such as major infrastructure and
national Industry Strategy / We have
increased evidence based including
Visitor Economy 'Volume and Value'
studies and the draft NLP Ipswich Area
Economic Sector needs data now in
which is informing our Economic
Development Strategy / Economic Open
for Business Strategy has now been
adopted and published / Central Suffolk
Chamber of Commerce launched Sept
2019. Economic evidence base refresh
Sept 2019, Programme of Major business
visits (over 100 employees) underway

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Develop programme of shared delivery with
new Central Suffolk Chamber of Commerce create new framework for refreshed BMSDC
economic growth strategy - Review of
Business Grant Programmes

Ongoing

Spring 2020

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

CAUSE:
Insufficient infrastructure and
connectivity for growth
including high speed
broadband, road and rail
connections
RISK:
RISK
4

Lack of business growth and
investment in the districts

Assistant
Director Economy and
Regeneration

Cabinet
Members for
Economic
Growth

3

3

9

BMSDC involved in strategic
infrastructure work through Suffolk
Growth Programme Board, East West
Rail consortium and Suffolk iCloud
project which will be connecting up
public sector assets with high speed
broadband in Sudbury and Stowmarket

12

1.) The development of our Joint Local
Plan
2.) Delivery of the Economic Open for
Business Strategy
3.) Provision of officer support and
expertise to ensure Space to Innovate
and Food Enterprise Zones are delivered
within timescales
4.) Our Open for Business engagement
approach including with investors,
developers and businesses (existing and
new) facilitating retention and growth
within the district. 5.) New workspace
demand study and tech hub study
identify key market demand and market
failure. 6)Council leadership options
being developed for provision of new
workspace

2

3

6

NEW RISK

Work ongoing to review full fibre network
opportunities across both districts, working
to ensure Copdock remains a regional
priority for investment, infrastructure an
emerging priority in refreshed economic
strategy

Ongoing

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Innovation Labs - hot desk and business
support space launched Nov 2019 - work
ongoing regarding innovation cluster
Gateway 14. Working with Brantham
developer to review core sector/occupier
interest

Summer 2020

2

3

6

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Page 14

Areas fail to grow and attract
new highly skilled staff and
high growth businesses move
out

CAUSE:

Lack of engagement with land
owners, developers, investors
and businesses
RISK:
RISK
Lack of workspace delivered in
5
districts due to market failure
CONSEQUENCE(S):

Our current businesses may
not be able to remain in our
districts and we may not
attract new businesses

Assistant
Director Economy and
Regeneration

Cabinet
Members for
Economic
Growth

4

3

2

3

6

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

2

3

6

CAUSE:
National impacts on retail uses
in town centre and changed
shopping habits have
RISK:

RISK
6

Decline in our key towns
impacts upon economic
prosperity of the districts

Assistant
Director Economy and
Regeneration

Cabinet
Members for
Economic
Growth

3

3

9

CONSEQUENCE(S):

2

3

6

NEW RISK

Ongoing

Page 15

Economically inactive town
centres which do not serve
their wider communities, loss
of local jobs and investment
CAUSE:

Officer capacity added to help
communities deliver Neighbourhood
Plans.

Lack of effective engagement
with communities to
understand their future needs

Joint Scrutiny Committee review
undertaken.
Town and Parish Council Liaison
meetings in place and frequency
increased.

RISK:

RISK
7

Visions for prosperity in place across 5
key towns - Stowmarket, Needham,
Sudbury, Hadleigh and Eye - programme
of workshops and engagement with local
groups and communities over the
summer - robust programme of actions
in each place. Steering Groups
established for Sudbury and Stowmarket

Further work includes the development of
Steering groups in Needham, Hadleigh and
Eye - review of vision in each place and
agreement of set of key messages - Ensuring
range of private and public sector partners in
Steering group - review opportunities for
new funding streams, encourage
collaborative working across projects in key
towns e.g. links between Innovation Labs and
MEAL in Stowmarket

We may not be able to help
communities become more
sustainable

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Increased demand on services
Reduced quality of life
Reduced access to services

Assistant
Director Planning and
Communities

Cabinet
Members for
Communities

3

3

9

Tenant involvement strategy creates a
full menu of involvement options.
Statement of Community Involvement:
Planning Matters approved by Full
Council.
Community Strategy adopted by full
Council.
20 drop-in events delivered in
communities as part of consultation on
Joint Local Plan.

Engagement with key Town Councils by
Strategic Directors.
3

3

9

Stayed the
same

Officer employed to engage directly with
communities in the Council's own
development.
Create Delivery Plan in association with
Community Strategy

ongoing

ongoing

November
2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

Further Actions / Comments

L

I

S

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Progressing investment of Phase 2 funds

3

3

9

Stayed the
same

Discussions with different parties to develop
Delivery Model

Planned
completion
date(s)

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

March 2021

2

3

6

December
2019

2

3

6

CAUSE:
If the Capital Investment Fund
(CIF) does not generate
forecast investment returns
RISK:
RISK We may be unable to meet the
8
income projections for the
Councils

Assistant
Director Assets and
Investments

Cabinet
Members for
Assets and
Investment

Phase 1 CIFCO has now invested 100% of
the fund in line with its business plan.
2

4

8

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Revised Business Plan has been
approved by Councils and adopted by
the Holding Companies and Board of
CIFCO

There may be a drain on
General Fund resources
CAUSE:

Page 16

Gateway 14 Ltd fails to bring
forward the development of
site

RISK:
RISK
9 Income and Capital projections
and economic outcomes may
not be delivered
CONSEQUENCE(S):
Land remains under-utilised

Assistant
Director Assets and
Investments

Cabinet
Members for
Assets and
Investment

3

4

12

Appropriate treasury management
advice being applied. Gateway 14 Ltd
has engaged a knowledgeable and
experienced Board of Director to enable
the delivery of the scheme and is being
supported by market leading experts in
preparing a delivery strategy for the site.

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

CAUSE:

If we do not make best use of
our multiple sources of data

We are continuing to cleanse specific data
sets (such as permitted development info)
with additional resource enabling us to work February 2020
smarter in the future. There are a number of
data sets that this activity will need to
continue for - each will be considered in line
with a robust business case due to the costs
associated with the activity. We are
drafting an Information Management
Strategy which will provide a framework for
the organisation to store, input, use and
destroy data. It will also provide guidance
and an approach to how we use data
consistently across the organisation to make
better decisions.

RISK:

Page 17

We are setting clear data standards as
part of General Data Protection
Regulations and have undertaken a
review to ensure that all staff have
completed the GDPR training which is
now included in the induction process.

RISK
10

Our data sources will not be
reliable and efficient

CONSEQUENCE(S):

We will not have a strong
evidence base to support
organisational decisions and
assumptions.

Assistant
Director Customer
Services

Cabinet
Members for
Organisational
Delivery

3

3

9

2
The Information Asset Register has now
been completed and provides a clear
understanding of all the data sets we
own, who the information asset owner is
and their retention periods. This will be
reviewed annually.

3

6

Stayed the
same

Power BI has enabled us to join up and
reconciling various databases to enable us to
make better decisions. For example:
reviewing sickness information, verify who
January 2020
has done the GDPR training, how often
mobile phones are used, how many people
use the office space on Gold and Lime,
Printer usage, BT landline usage from
external properties. We are continue to
identify themes and issues that Power BI can
help us with and identify how we can make
best use of Power BI across teams.
Further plans will be put in place to review
and reconcile core databases including the
HR database with the Finance system.
February 2020

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

I

S

L

3

4

Assistant
Director Corporate
Resources

12

Use of one-off funding to change the
business model and support functions
during change

2

4

Modelling and analysis to understand
impact (e.g. Capital Investment Fund),
Identifying income generating activities
to replace government grants (e.g. PV
panels, rental income from properties)

BDC
Cabinet
Members for
Finance

4

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

8

L

16

Stayed the
same

2
Identifying options over next 4 years under 3
categories of; review, remodel and reinvent.
Aim to have 4 year costed action plan rather
than looking at just the next year.
Detailed budget challenge across all service
areas incorporating revenue, capital and
reserves.

3
20/21 budget set in February 20

4

12

I

S

MSDC

BDC

Engagement of councillors to
understand options

CONSEQUENCE(S):
4

Further Actions / Comments

MSDC

RISK:

Page 18

We may be unable to deliver
the entirety of the Joint
Strategic Plan

I

MSDC

CAUSE:

If we do not respond to our
projected financial position

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

RISK We may be unable to react in a
timely and effective way to
11
financial demands

Current scores

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

Stayed the
same

Identifying specific areas of focus to achieve
cost reductions or additional income in-year
and over medium-term.

4

8

BDC
Dec-20

2

4

8

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

I

S

CAUSE:

I

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

4 year Member Development
Programme began from May 2019.
Development work has also commenced
in conjunction with the LGA to introduce
a thorough and integrated Member
Development, Senior Management and
Leadership programmes.

RISK:

The Councils may be perceived
to be untrustworthy and have
a poor reputation

Page 19

Chief Executive

This may prevent us from
entering into positive
partnerships, secure funding
and ultimately may affect our
ability to work with partners,
businesses and key
stakeholders in achieving the
strategic priorities.

L

Further Actions / Comments

L

I

S

2

3

6

Further constitution reviews are
underway of governance systems and
processes to optimise openness,
transparency and engagement in all our
approaches .

If we do not maintain the trust
of our stakeholders and
promote our public image and
reputation

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

RISK
12

Current scores

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

Cabinet
Members for
Assets &
Investments

4

3

12

To ensure more effective communication
and engagement a dedicated Strategic
Communications Lead Officer has been
recruited, Communications Strategy is
being put in place, which will include proactive engagement through all channels
e.g. social media and dedicated training
and support for media management.
Strengthened Parish / Town Council
relationships have been put in place
through dedicated officer liaison links,
regular clerks meetings and refreshed
Parish Liaison Meetings.
Staff Conference during Summer 2019
was used to embed the new
organisational values

The Values and Behaviours Natural Work
Team is ongoing to embed the new culture,
values and behaviours and overlaps with the
equivalent Rewards & Recognition work with quarterly milestone updates

3

3

9

Stayed the
same

December
2019

Commence the Management and Leadership
February 2020
Programme
Recruitment to the one remaining position
within the Communications Team.
The Councils approach to engagement will be
finalised upon completion for the
Communities Strategy consultation and
adoption of that strategy.

November
2019

December
2019

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

I

S

CAUSE:

L

H&S service plan with remedial actions
to address H&S gaps in place and
progress monitored by the H&S Board.

Page 20

Cabinet
Members for
Finance

4

4

16

In partnership with HR/OD employee
support in place for Mental Health via
Mental First Aiders and a Stress
Management Toolkit.
H&S Policy and Management System
reviewed.
Generic Risk Assessments reviewed and
in place.
Most services have now completed
service-based Risk Assessments.
Personal Safety training introduced for
manager and lone workers.

L

I

S

2

4

8

.

Skyguard lone working app or device
available for all lone workers.

A H&S working group meets with
representation from high risk services to
discuss and develop focus and strategy.

Planned
completion
date(s)

Further Actions / Comments

S

H&S Training Matrix new online learning
products reviewed and online.

RISK:

Injury or harm to employees.
Fines from the HSE.
Reputational impact to the
Councils

I

H&S Training programme: IOSH
Managing Safely for Managers and Team
Leaders.

If we fail to protect our
employees and other persons
to whom we owe a duty of
care

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

The safety, health, welfare and
RISK wellbeing of individuals may be
Chief Executive
13
compromised

Current scores

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

3

4

12

Stayed the
same

Newly appointed ADs and CMs to complete
H&S training (delayed due to C-19)

March 2020

New managers and remaining lone workers
to complete personal safety training.
(delayed due to C-19)

March 2020

Action plans in place to complete remedial
compliance actions.

Nov 2019

Annual review of H&S Service Plan.
Completed April 2020 - requires further
review due to C-19 impact)

Oct 2019

Both Councils have committed to The Ending April 2020
Violence at Work Charter and have 12
months to meet the standards - Certificated
July 2020)
Health Screening Arrangements for Building
Services to be re-launched with United Health screening recommenced June 2020

Dec 2019

Health and Safety staff awareness campaign April 2021
to commence November 2019 (delayed due
to C-19)
Fire strategy final draft completed July 2020
On-going requirement for new RA's SSoW
and guidance provided corporately and for
services to address C-19 hazards

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

L

I

S

2

3

6

CAUSE:

Ineffective organisational
change, lack of available skills,
resources and increased
demand for services

People Strategy in development, Suffolkwide People Strategy in place between
partner agencies is standardising a new
approach to appoint and retain skilled
staff. NB Report to Overview and
Scrutiny Committee Jan 2019 showed
number of people leaving Apr-Sep 2018
was 20, compared to 122 in whole of
17/18.

RISK:

Failure to achievement of our
Vision and Strategic priorities
RISK and ambition (as articulated in
Chief Executive
the Corporate Plan)
14

Page 21

CONSEQUENCE(S):

We may be unable to achieve
our strategic ambitions within
our desired timescales and not
able to meet our communities
and stakeholders expectations

Leaders of the
Councils

3

3

9

Key policies and toolkits have been
developed or reviewed to give greater
clarity around how staff will be
managed.
Housing, Communities and Customer
Strategies in place. Some project
managers and training in place.
Programme methodology and Boards
confirmed.

Management review (appointment to key
roles) completed and realignment of teams /
roles / responsibilities
Embedding programmes and project
approach

2

3

6

Stayed the
same

Adopting a People Strategy and action plan
that will include elements aimed at
improving recruitment and retention.
Development of key programmes e.g. Digital
Transformation

Leadership & Management Programme
Corporate Outcomes (2019-2023) approved
for delivery through Service Plans

March 2020

January 2020

January 2020

March 2020

March 2021

January 2020

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

I

S

CONSEQUENCE(S):

I

2

4

8

Assistant
Leaders of the
Director - Law &
Councils
Governance

4

1

4

The Cabinets have committed to
exploring alternative forms of council
structure which could potentially
generate financial savings and
efficiencies / the councils have an
integrated workforce and joint strategic
plan / the councils have a joint medium
term financial strategy

BDC

3

Further Actions / Comments

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

L

MSDC

RISK:

RISK
15

L

MSDC

CAUSE:

If the Councils do not adopt a
new delivery model

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

The Councils may not be
financially sustainable

Current scores

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

12

4

Stayed the
same

1

8

4

4

BDC
Work on exploring alternative structural
models for the Councils is currently on hold.

4

S

MSDC

BDC

2

I

N/A

Stayed the
same

2

4

8

2

4

8

We may be unable to deliver
key services in the future

Page 22
CAUSE:
If there is inadequate funding
available to the Councils
and/or industry solutions are
not yet developed enough to
take advantage of

Assistant
Director RISK:
RISK
Environment &
16 The Councils will not be carbon
Commercial
neutral by 2030
Partnerships
CONSEQUENCE(S):
The motion will not be met;
reputational damage; Councils
would be actively contributing
to climate decline

Cabinet
Members for
Environment

In July 2020 both Cabinets approved, in
principle, the Environment & Climate Change
Completed July
Task Force's Carbon Reduction Management
2020
Plan.

The Climate Change Emergency motion
was passed in July 2019 committing to
become carbon neutral by 2030.
4

4

16

3
Task force groups created and working
on developing solutions to present to
Cabinet become carbon neutral.

4

12

NEW RISK

Continue to work alongside our peers,
sharing best practice and lessons learned.
Officers to begin work immediately to reduce
the impact of existing processes on our
baseline.

TBC

TBC

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

The global Covid-19 Pandemic
has caused the Councils to
experience a loss of income /
delayed collection of income /
increases in expenditure

Page 23

L

I

S

2

2

4

A multi-agency incident was declared. Senior
officers joined SCG & TCG as part of the multiagency response. Various sub-groups were
established and supported by the councils
including Communities Board – dealing with
food distribution, medicine distribution and
support for isolated in their homes. Safer
Places – dealing with the safe opening of
open spaces and the high streets &
businesses, Track and Trace – dealing with
the local arrangements to track and trace
contacts in the event of a local outbreak or
spike in infections.

CAUSE:

Within the Councils SMT and TMT were
established and an emergen+O120cy
response and business continuity
arrangements were established.
SMT provide a strategic lead and TMT
implemented the required actions including
the dispersal of those staff that were able to
to do so working from home, the scaling back
if housing repairs to an emergency service,
the closure of face to face customer contact
centres and the dispersal of the call centre
staff to also work from home. Many other
services such as planning, building control,
tenant services stopped face to face
customer contact.

RISK:
The Councils have quickly mobilised an
emergency response structure which has
been leading the organisation's
approach to managing the impacts of
the pandemic. Losses of staff and service
provision have been largely avoided.
The recovery structure for the
organisation is now in place with clear
strategic aims. Monitoring will be
undertaken by SLT.

The Councils become
financially unviable

Following the initial response, the
subsequent reduction in C-19 cases and
relaxation of some of the lockdown
measures. The recovery structure for the
organisation is now in place with clear
strategic aims. Recovery is being led by SLT.

The Councils have strong links into the
County-wide multi-agency response to
the pandemic and have access to
regional and national guidance and
forums.
RISK
17

Further Actions / Comments

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

Chief Executive

Leaders of the
Councils

4

4

16

The S.151 officer is closely monitoring
the authorisation of emergency
expenditure and use of reserves. The
Finance Team are making returns to
Central Government and accessing
central funding wherever possible.
TMT is regularly collating data from
Corporate Managers regarding
operational issues and opportunities for
reinvention of services as part of the
recovery programme.

3

4

12

NEW RISK

Open ended at
Each operational site has completed a c-19
this early stage
assessment. Some services have returned to
a near ‘normal’ operation (Waste Services,
Building Control, etc) Others have adapted
the way they work to deliver a service in an
amended way (Committee Services,
Planning, Tenant Services, Customer
Services).
Risk Assessments and Safe Working
Procedures are required for all new and
amended services prior to commencement.
The S.151 officer is closely monitoring the
authorisation of emergency expenditure and

The recovery structure for the
organisation is now in place with clear
strategic aims. Monitoring will be
undertaken by SLT.

RISK DETAILS
RISK
17

Risk
owner
Chief Executive

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Cabinet
Member
Leads
Leaders of the
Councils

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

4
L

4
I

16
S

The Councils have strong links into the
County-wide multi-agency response to
the pandemic and have access to
regional and national guidance and
Mitigation to date
forums.
The S.151 officer is closely monitoring
the authorisation of emergency
expenditure and use of reserves. The
Finance Team are making returns to
Central Government and accessing
central funding wherever possible.
TMT is regularly collating data from
Corporate Managers regarding
operational issues and opportunities for
reinvention of services as part of the
recovery programme.
Financial support has been provided to
our leisure centres and community
groups in order to support the ongoing
health and wellbeing of our
communities.

Page 24
The Councils are unable to
provide key services / deliver
priorities / support residents,
communities and businesses

tenant services stopped face to face
customer contact.

Current scores

3
L

4
I

12
S

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)
NEW RISK

Following the initial response, the
subsequent reduction in C-19 cases and
relaxation of some of the lockdown
measures. The recovery structure for the
organisation is now in place with clear
Further
Actions /isComments
strategic
aims. Recovery
being led by SLT.

Planned
completion
date(s)
Open ended at
Each operational site has completed a c-19
this early stage
assessment. Some services have returned to
a near ‘normal’ operation (Waste Services,
Building Control, etc) Others have adapted
the way they work to deliver a service in an
amended way (Committee Services,
Planning, Tenant Services, Customer
Services).
Risk Assessments and Safe Working
Procedures are required for all new and
amended services prior to commencement.
The S.151 officer is closely monitoring the
authorisation of emergency expenditure and
use of reserves. The Finance Team are
making returns to Central Government and
accessing central funding wherever possible.
Three tranches of funding provided to date
by MHCLG. Projected loss of income and
additional expenditure compared against
reserve levels to give assurance to external
audit on 'going concern' concept.
TMT is regularly collating data from
Corporate Managers regarding operational
issues and opportunities for reinvention of
services as part of the recovery programme.
Financial support has been provided to our
leisure centres and community groups in
order to support the ongoing health and
wellbeing of our communities.
Recovery arrangements are connected to the
multi-agency activity via the LRF cells.
Staff absence levels are low and staff welfare
has been monitored by managers and will
continue through various staff

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

2
L

2
I

4
S

RISK DETAILS

Risk
owner

Cabinet
Member
Leads

Original scores
(before any mitigation)

Current scores

Direction of
Travel from
previous Qtr.
(score)

Mitigation to date
L

I

S

L

I

I

S

2

2

4

Current dispersed working arrangements will
reduce the risk of C-19 between staff. Covid19 Secure working arrangements at all
occupied council work sites will reduce the
risk of C-19 transmission between staff.

RISK:
The Council becomes
financially unviable
Chief Executive

Page 25
The Councils are unable to
provide key services / deliver
priorities / support residents,
communities and businesses

L
Emergency response structures which have
been stood down from the summer
pandemic can be re-instigated quickly and
effectively.

A second peak in Covid-19

CONSEQUENCE(S):

Planned
completion
date(s)

S

CAUSE:

RISK
18

Further Actions / Comments

Target scores
(following completion of
all further actions)

Leaders of the
Councils

4

4

16

NEW RISK

3

4

12

NEW RISK

National and local track and trace
arrangements will help to control the spread
of the virus from confirmed cases to the
Open ended at
wider staff body.
this early stage
Remote working arrangements have been
tried and tested and can be re-instigated
where and when required.
Critical services have been identified, Staff
redeployment systems are effective and
resource can be repositioned to support
critical services if needed.
The Councils are supporting and participating
in the development of the Suffolk
Communicable Diseases Plan in
preparedness for a second Covid-19 wave.

This page is intentionally left blank

Disaster

4

Bad/Serious

3

Noticeable
/Minor

2

Impact

Impact / Consequence

Appendix B

1

Minimal

4 (Medium)

8 (High)

12
(Very High)

16
(Very High)

3 (Low)

6 (Medium)

9 (High)

12
(Very High)

2 (Low)

4 (Medium)

6 (Medium)

8 (High)

1 (Low)

2 (Low)

3 (Low)

4 (Medium)

1

2

3

4

Highly
Unlikely

Unlikely

Probable

Highly
Probable

Probability / Likelihood
Likelihood

1

Highly Unlikely

2

Unlikely

3

Probable

4

Highly probable

Less than 25%
Has never occurred before
Would only happen in exceptional circumstances
26% - 50%
Not expected to occur but potential exists
Has occurred once in the last ten years
51% - 75%
May occur occasionally
Has occurred within the last 5 years
Reasonable chance of occurring again
Over 76%
Expected to occur
Occurs regularly or frequently

Impact / Consequence
Finance

Compliance

Health, Safety
& Wellbeing
Minimal harm
to persons
/community

Service Delivery

Reputation

Very minor
disruption (less
than 1 day)

No
noticeable
media
interest
Local media
coverage

1

Minimal

Minor loss
<£5,000

Small, single
noncompliance

2

Noticeable
/ Minor

Moderate
loss
£5,001 –
£50,000

Potential for illhealth, injury
or equipment
damage

Some service
disruption,
(more than one
day)

3

Bad /
Serious

Significant
loss
£50,101 –
£250,000

Sustained
single or few
short-term
noncompliance
Multiple
sustained
noncompliance

Potential for
serious harm
or injury (nonlife
threatening)

Critical service
disruption
(statutory
services not
delivered)

Adverse
local/national
media
coverage

4

Disaster

Substantial
loss
>£250,000

Significant
noncompliance Litigation,
custodial
sentence

Fatality, major
injury (life
threatening or
life impacting)

Systemic or
sustained
service loss

Adverse/
prolonged
national
media
coverage

Red text = Health and Safety Descriptors
Page 27

*

Appendix B

Red text = Health and Safety Descriptors
Page 28

Agenda Item 8
BABERGH DISTRICT COUNCIL and MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL

TO: Joint Audit & Standards Committee
FROM:

OFFICER:

Katherine Steel, Assistant
Director, Corporate
Resources
Melissa Evans, Corporate
Manager, Finance and
Commissioning &
Procurement
Sue Palmer, Senior Finance
Business Partner

REPORT NUMBER:

JAC/19/24

DATE OF MEETING: 11 August 2020

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT – 2019/20
1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The report is part of the Councils’ management and governance arrangements for
Treasury Management activity under the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury
Management (“the Code”). It provides Members with a comprehensive assessment
of activities for the financial year 2019/20.

1.2

The report specifically sets out the performance of the treasury management function,
the effects of the decisions taken, and the transactions executed in the past year and
any circumstances of non-compliance with the Councils’ treasury management policy
statement and treasury management practices.

1.3

The report also includes performance on Prudential Indicators which were set in the
2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy (shown in Appendix E).

1.4

The figures contained in this report are subject to the external auditor’s review which
should be concluded by the end of December.

2.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1

This report fulfils the Councils’ legal obligations to have regard to the Code and there
are no options to consider.

3.

RECOMMENDATION TO BOTH COUNCILS

3.1

That the Treasury Management activity for the year 2019/20 be noted. Further, that
it be noted that performance was in line with the Prudential Indicators set for 2019/20.
RECOMMENDATION TO BABERGH COUNCIL

3.2

That it be noted that Babergh District Council treasury management activity for
2019/20 was in accordance with the approved Treasury Management Strategy, and
that the Council has complied with all the Treasury Management Indicators for this
period.

Page 29

RECOMMENDATION TO MID SUFFOLK COUNCIL
3.3

That it be noted that Mid Suffolk District Council treasury management activity for
2018/19 was in accordance with the approved Treasury Management Strategy, and
that, except for one occasion when the Council exceeded its daily bank account limit
with Lloyds by £129k, as mentioned in Appendix C, paragraph 4.6, the Council has
complied with all the Treasury Management Indicators for this period.
REASON FOR DECISION
It is a requirement of the Code of Practice on Treasury Management that full
Council notes the position for the financial year 2019/20.

4.

KEY INFORMATION

4.1

The 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy for both Councils was approved in
February 2019.

4.2

The strategy and activities are affected by a number of factors, including the
regulatory framework, economic conditions, best practice and interest rate/liquidity
risk. The attached appendices summarise the regulatory framework, economic
background and information on key activities for the financial year.

4.3

The Half Year Report on Treasury Management 2019/20 was presented to Members
at the Joint Audit and Standards Committee on 27 January 2020.

4.4

The Treasury Management Indicators aim to ensure that the capital investments of
local authorities are affordable, prudent, and sustainable and that treasury
management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional practice.

4.5

Appendix D shows the position on key Treasury Management Indicators for 2019/20.

4.6

The following key points relating to activity for the year are set out below:
•

The UK unemployment rate was 3.9% in the three months to January 2020
while the employment rate hit a record high of 76.5%. The average annual
growth rate for pay excluding bonuses was 3.1% in January 2020.

•

The annual rate of GDP growth remained below-trend at 1.1%.

•

The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) reduced the official
Bank Rate by 0.50% to 0.25% in March 2020 and then swiftly further reduced
it to a record low of 0.1%.

•

COVID-19, which had first appeared in China in December 2019, started
spreading across the globe causing plummeting sentiment and falls in financial
markets not seen since the Global Financial Crisis as part of a flight to quality
into sovereign debt and other perceived ‘safe’ assets. The UK government
introduced a number of measures to help businesses and households
impacted by a series of ever-tightening social restrictions as a result of the
COVID-19, culminating in pretty much the entire lockdown of the UK.

Page 30

4.7

•

Investment of surplus funds - As market conditions, credit ratings and Bank
ring fencing have changed during the year, institutions that the Councils invest
with and the period of the investments have been reviewed.

•

Credit risk scores were within the benchmark A- credit ratings.

•

Babergh’s short-term debt increased by £9.5m offset by a reduction in longterm debt of £1m, to take advantage of lower rates after the PWLB rates were
increased. This was for the £4.1m of approved investment in the non-treasury
investments of CIFCO Ltd, the purchase of various HRA new build properties
totalling £3.4m and for general cashflow purposes.

•

Mid Suffolk’s short-term debt increased by £6.4m, offset by the repayment of
£1.3m long term borrowing to take advantage of lower rates after the PWLB
rates were increased. The increase in debt was mainly due to the £4.1m of
approved investment in the non-treasury investments of CIFCO Ltd. and
£4.7m in Gateway 14 Ltd.

Specific highlights relating to 2019/20 activity are provided below:
Area/Activity
Long Term Borrowing –
average interest rate
Credit Risk Scores during
the year (value weighted
average)
Compliance with
Prudential Indicators

Babergh

Mid Suffolk Comments

2.82%

3.07%

4.61 – 5.28

4.79 – 5.16

✓

✓

All at fixed rates
Both within the score for
the approved A- credit
rating for investment
counterparties
See Appendix E

4.8

The Section 151 Officer can report that, except for one occasion when Mid Suffolk
exceeded its daily bank account limit with Lloyds by £129k, as mentioned in Appendix
C, paragraph 4.6, all treasury management activities undertaken complied fully with
the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Councils’ approved Treasury Management
Strategy.

5.

LINKS TO JOINT CORPORATE PLAN

5.1

Ensuring that the Councils have the resources available underpins the ability to
achieve the priorities set out in the Joint Corporate Plan.

6.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1

As detailed in the report and appendices.

7.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The legal status of the Treasury Management Code derives in England from
regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 (the 2003 Act).

7.2

Local authorities are required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code
when carrying out their duties under Part 1 of the 2003 Act.

Page 31

7.3

The latest statutory guidance on local government investments was issued under
section 15(1)(a) of the 2003 Act and effective for financial years commencing on or
after 1 April 2018. Under that section local authorities are required to “have regard”
to “such guidance as the Secretary of State may issue”.

8.

RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1

This report is most closely linked to the Councils’ Significant Risk Register, Risk no.
13. “We may be unable to respond in a timely and effective way to financial demands”.

8.2

Key risks are set out below:
Risk Description

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigation
Measures

If the Councils lose
the investments
this will impact on
their ability to
deliver services.

Highly Unlikely (1)

Bad (3)

Strict lending
criteria for high
credit rated
institutions.

If the Councils
achieve a poorer
return on
investments than
planned, there will
be fewer resources
available to deliver
services.

Probable (3)

Noticeable (2)

If the Councils
have liquidity
problems, then
they will be unable
to meet their shortterm liabilities.

Unlikely (2)

Noticeable (2)

Focus is on
security and
liquidity, and
careful cash flow
management in
accordance with
the TM Strategy is
undertaken
throughout the
year.
As above.

9.

CONSULTATIONS

9.1

Regular meetings have taken place with the Councils’ Treasury advisors, Arlingclose,
who also provide important updates on treasury management issues as they arise.

10.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS

10.1

An equality analysis has not been completed because the report content does not
have any impact on the protected characteristics.

11.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

11.1

All Council activities will need to be reviewed as part of the work of the Climate
Change Task Group and have regard to the Councils' ambition to be carbon neutral
by 2030.

Page 32

12.

APPENDICES
Title

Location

(a) Background, Economy and Outlook

Appendix A

(b) Borrowing Strategy

Appendix B

(c) Investment activity

Appendix C

(d) Treasury Management Indicators

Appendix D

(e) Prudential Indicators

Appendix E

(f)

Appendix F

Glossary of Terms

13.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

13.1

CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (“the Code”).

13.2

Joint Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 (Paper JAC/18/16)

13.3

Half Year Report on Treasury Management 2019/20 (Paper JAC/19/10)

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A
Background, Economy and Outlook
1.

Introduction

1.1.

In February 2012 the Councils adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the
“CIPFA Code”) which requires the Councils to approve treasury management half
year and annual reports.

1.2.

The Joint Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 was approved at both full
Councils in February 2019. Babergh District Council and Mid Suffolk District Council
have borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and both are therefore
exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect
of changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and control of
risk remains central to the Councils’ Treasury Management Strategy.

1.3.

Treasury risk management at the Councils is conducted within the framework of the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in
the Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires
the Councils to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each
financial year and, as a minimum, a half year and annual treasury outturn report . This
report fulfils the Councils’ legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to
have regard to the CIPFA Code.

1.4.

The 2017 Prudential Code includes a requirement for local authorities to provide a
Capital Strategy, a summary document approved by full Council covering capital
expenditure and financing, treasury management and non-treasury investments. The
Councils’ first Capital Strategy, for the financial year 2019/20, complying with CIPFA’s
Code requirement, was approved by both full Councils in February 2019.

2.

External Context

2.1.

Economic background:

2.2.

The UK’s exit from the European Union and future trading arrangements, had
remained one of the major influences on the UK economy and sentiment during
2019/20. The 29 March 2019 Brexit deadline was extended to 12 April, then to 31
October and finally to 31 January 2020. Politics played a major role in financial
markets over the period as the UK’s tenuous progress negotiating its exit from the
European Union together with its future trading arrangements drove volatility,
particularly in foreign exchange markets. The outcome of December’s General
Election removed a lot of the uncertainty and looked set to provide a ‘bounce’ to
confidence and activity.

2.3.

The headline rate of UK Consumer Price Inflation UK Consumer Price Inflation fell to
1.7% year on year in February, below the Bank of England’s target of 2%. Labour
market data remained positive. The ILO (International Labour Organisation)
unemployment rate was 3.9% in the three months to January 2020 while the
employment rate hit a record high of 76.5%. The average annual growth rate for pay
excluding bonuses was 3.1% in January 2020 and the same when bonuses were
included, providing some evidence that a shortage of labour had been supporting
wages.
Page 35

Appendix A cont’d
2.4.

GDP growth in Q4 2019 was reported as flat by the Office for National Statistics and
service sector growth slowed and production and construction activity contracted on
the back of what at the time were concerns over the impact of global trade tensions
on economic activity. The annual rate of GDP growth remained below-trend at 1.1%.

2.5.

Then coronavirus swiftly changed everything. COVID-19, which had first appeared in
China in December 2019, started spreading across the globe causing plummeting
sentiment and falls in financial markets not seen since the Global Financial Crisis as
part of a flight to quality into sovereign debt and other perceived ‘safe’ assets.

2.6.

In response to the spread of the virus and sharp increase in those infected, the
government enforced lockdowns, central banks and governments around the world
cut interest rates and introduced massive stimulus packages in an attempt to reduce
some of the negative economic impact to domestic and global growth.

2.7.

The Bank of England, which had held policy rates steady at 0.75% through most of
2019/20, moved in March to cut rates to 0.25% from 0.75% and then swiftly thereafter
brought them down further to the record low of 0.1%. In conjunction with these cuts,
the UK government introduced a number of measures to help businesses and
households impacted by a series of ever-tightening social restrictions, culminating in
pretty much the entire lockdown of the UK.

2.8.

The US economy grew at an annualised rate of 2.1% in Q4 2019. After escalating
trade wars and a protracted standoff, the signing of Phase 1 of the trade agreement
between the US and China in January was initially positive for both economies, but
COVID-19 severely impacted sentiment and production in both countries. Against a
slowing economic outlook, the US Federal Reserve (the Fed) began cutting rates in
August. Following a series of five cuts, the largest of which were in March 2020, the
Fed Funds rate fell from of 2.5% to range of 0% - 0.25%. The US government also
unleashed a raft of COVID-19 related measures and support for its economy
including a $2 trillion fiscal stimulus package. With interest rates already on (or below)
the floor, the European Central Bank held its base rate at 0% and deposit rate at 0.5%.

2.9.

Financial Markets:

2.10. Financial markets sold off sharply as the impact from the coronavirus worsened. After
starting positively in 2020, the FTSE 100 fell over 30% at its worst point with stock
markets in other countries seeing similar huge falls. In March sterling touch its lowest
level against the dollar since 1985. The measures implemented by central banks and
governments helped restore some confidence and financial markets have rebounded
in recent weeks but remain extremely volatile. The flight to quality caused gilts yields
to fall substantially. The 5-year benchmark falling from 0.75% in April 2019 to 0.26%
on 31 March 2020. The 10-year benchmark yield fell from 1% to 0.4%, the 20-year
benchmark yield from 1.47% to 0.76% over the same period. 1-month, 3-month and
12-month bid rates averaged 0.61%, 0.72% and 0.88% respectively over the period.
2.11. Since the start of the calendar year 2020, the yield on 2-year US treasuries had fallen
from 1.573% to 0.20% and from 1.877% to 0.61% for 10-year treasuries. German
bund yields remain negative.
Page 36

Appendix A cont’d
2.12. Credit background:
2.13. In Q4 2019 Fitch affirmed the UK’s AA sovereign rating, removed it from Rating Watch
Negative (RWN) and assigned a negative outlook. Fitch then affirmed UK banks’
long-term ratings, removed the RWN and assigned a stable outlook. Standard &
Poor’s also affirmed the UK sovereign AA rating and revised the outlook to stable
from negative. The Bank of England announced its latest stress tests results for the
main seven UK banking groups. All seven passed on both a common equity Tier 1
(CET1) ratio and a leverage ratio basis. Under the test scenario the banks’ aggregate
level of CET1 capital would remain twice their level before the 2008 financial crisis.
2.14. After remaining flat in January and February and between a range of 30-55bps, Credit
Default Swap spreads rose sharply in March as the potential impact of the
coronavirus on bank balance sheets gave cause for concern. Spreads declined in
late March and through to mid-April but remain above their initial 2020 levels.
NatWest Markets Plc (non-ringfenced) remains the highest at 128bps and National
Westminster Bank Plc (ringfenced) still the lowest at 56bps. The other main UK banks
are between 65bps and 123bps, with the latter being the thinly traded and volatile
Santander UK CDS.
2.15. While the UK and Non-UK banks on the Arlingclose counterparty list remain in a
strong and well-capitalised position, the duration advice on all these banks was cut
to 35 days in mid-March.
2.16. Fitch downgraded the UK sovereign rating to AA- in March which was followed by a
number of actions on UK and Non-UK banks. This included revising the outlook on
all banks on the counterparty list to negative, with the exception of Barclays Bank,
Rabobank, Handelsbanken and Nordea Bank which were placed on Rating Watch
Negative, as well as cutting Close Brothers long-term rating to A-. Having revised
their outlooks to negative, Fitch upgraded the long-term ratings on Canadian and
German banks but downgraded the long-term ratings for Australian banks. HSBC
Bank and HSBC UK Bank, however, had their long-term ratings increased by Fitch
to AA-.
3.

Local Context

3.1.

On 31 March 2020, Babergh had net borrowing of £102.2m and Mid Suffolk had net
borrowing of £112.8m arising from revenue and capital income and expenditure
activities. This is an increase of £5.6m for Babergh and a reduction of £6.5m for Mid
Suffolk from the 31 March 2019 position.

3.2.

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are the
underlying resources available for investment. These factors and the year-on-year
change are summarised in Table 1 as follows.

Page 37

Appendix A cont’d
3.3.

Table 1: Borrowing Summary

Babergh
General Fund CFR
HRA CFR
Total CFR
Borrowing CFR
Less: Usable reserves
Less: Working Capital
Net Borrowing Requirement

Mid Suffolk
General Fund CFR
HRA CFR
Total CFR
Borrowing CFR
Less: Usable reserves
Add / (Less): Working Capital
Net Borrowing Requirement

31.3.19
2019/20
Actual Movement
£m
£m
45.126
6.554
86.673
2.912
131.799
9.466

31.3.20
Actual
£m
51.680
89.585
141.265

(32.552)
(2.681)
96.566

(2.747)
(1.105)
5.614

(35.298)
(3.786)
102.181

31.3.19
2019/20
Actual Movement
£m
£m
66.285
9.406
87.970
0.000
154.255
9.406

31.3.20
Actual
£m
75.691
87.970
163.661

(38.024)
3.023
119.254

(49.004)
(1.897)
112.760

(10.980)
(4.920)
(6.494)

3.4. Babergh’s net borrowing requirement has increased due to a rise in the CFR as
capital expenditure was higher than the financing applied, including minimum
revenue provision and a reduction in working capital. This was offset by an increase
in usable reserves due to the timing of receipts and payments.
3.5. Mid Suffolk’s net borrowing requirement has reduced. There was a rise in the CFR
as new capital expenditure was higher than the financing applied, including minimum
revenue provision and a reduction in working capital. This was covered by an
increase in usable reserves due to the timing of receipts and payments.
3.6. The current strategy is to maintain borrowing and investments below their underlying
levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing, to reduce risk and keep interest costs
low.
3.7. Table 2: Treasury Management Summary
3.8. The actual treasury management activity and position at 31 March 2020 and the yearon-year change is shown in Table 2 as follows.

Page 38

Appendix A cont’d

Babergh
Long-term borrowing
Short-term borrowing
Total borrowing
Long-term investments
Cash and Cash equivalents
Total investments
Net Borrowing

Mid Suffolk
Long-term borrowing
Short-term borrowing
Total borrowing
Long-term investments
Cash and Cash equivalents
Total investments
Net Borrowing

3.9.

31.3.19
2019/20
Balance Movement

31.3.20
Balance

£m
97.047
7.000
104.047
9.430
2.421
11.851
92.196

£m
(1.024)
9.500
8.476
1.784
0.954
2.738
5.738

£m
96.023
16.500
112.523
11.214
3.375
14.589
97.934

31.3.19
2019/20
Balance Movement

31.3.20
Balance

£m
112.287
18.000
130.287
9.423
2.880
12.303
117.984

£m
110.939
24.400
135.339
11.215
10.448
21.663
113.676

£m
(1.348)
6.400
5.052
1.792
7.568
9.360
(4.308)

31.3.20
Average
Rate
%
2.82%
0.84%
4.85%
0.65%

31.3.20
Average
Rate
%
3.07%
0.80%
4.65%
0.67%

The figures in Table 2 are from the balance sheet in the statement of accounts,
adjusted to exclude operational cash, accrued interest and other accounting
adjustments.

3.10. Babergh and Mid Suffolk have both increased short term borrowing to finance capital
expenditure during the year.
3.11. Cash and cash equivalents include funds held in current bank accounts for day to day
cashflow purposes and short-term deposits. Babergh held £2m in money market
funds. Mid Suffolk held £6m in money market funds and £3m in overnight government
deposits.

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B
1.

Borrowing Strategy during the year

1.1.

On 9 October 2019 the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) raised the cost of certainty
rate borrowing by 1% to 1.8% above UK gilt yields as HM Treasury was concerned
about the overall level of local authority debt. PWLB borrowing remains available but
the margin of 180bp above gilt yields appears relatively very expensive. Market
alternatives are available and new products will be developed; however, the financial
strength of individual authorities will be scrutinised by investors and commercial
lenders.

1.2.

The Chancellor’s March 2020 Budget statement included significant changes to
PWLB policy and launched a wide-ranging consultation on the PWLB’s future
direction.

1.3.

At 31 March 2020, Babergh held £112.5m of loans and Mid Suffolk £135.3m. This
was an increase for Babergh of £8.5m and an increase of £5.0m for Mid Suffolk on
the previous year. These increases are part of both Councils’ strategy for funding
previous years’ capital programmes. The year-end borrowing position and the yearon-year change is shown in Table 3 that follows.

1.4.

The consultation entitled “Future Lending Terms” represents a frank, open and
inclusive invitation, allowing key stakeholders to contribute to developing a system
whereby PWLB loans can be made available at improved margins to support
qualifying projects. It contains proposals on allowing authorities that are not involved
in “debt for yield” activity to borrow at lower rates as well as stopping local authorities
using PWLB loans to buy commercial assets primarily for yield without impeding their
ability to pursue their core policy objectives of service delivery, housing, and
regeneration. The consultation also broaches the possibility of slowing, or stopping,
individual authorities from borrowing large sums in specific circumstances.

1.5.

The Councils submitted their responses to the consultation which closed on 31 July
2020 with implementation of the new lending terms expected in the latter part of this
calendar year or financial year beginning 2021/22.

1.6.

Table 3: Borrowing Position
31.3.19
2019/20
Balance Movement

Babergh

£m
97.047
7.000
104.047

Public Works Loan Board
Local authorities (short-term)
Total borrowing

£m
£m
(1.024)
96.023
9.500
16.500
8.476 112.523

31.3.19
2019/20
Balance Movement

Mid Suffolk
Public Works Loan Board
Banks (LOBO)
Local authorities (medium / long-term)
Local authorities (short-term)
Total borrowing

£m
92.287
4.000
16.000
18.000
130.287

Page 41

31.3.20
Balance

31.3.20
Balance

£m
£m
(1.348)
90.939
0.000
4.000
0.000
16.000
6.400
24.400
5.052 135.339

31.3.20
Average
Rate
%
2.82%
0.84%

31.3.20
Average
Rate
%
3.79%
4.21%
1.20%
0.80%

Appendix B cont’d
1.7.

Table 3 - Charts: Borrowing Position

Babergh External Borrowing
Portfolio at 31 March 2020
Local authorities
15%

Public Works
Loan Board
85%

Mid Suffolk External Borrowing
Portfolio at 31 March 2020
Banks (LOBO)
3%

Local authorities
30%

Public Works
Loan Board
67%

1.8.

The Councils’ objective when borrowing has been to strike an appropriately low risk
balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost certainty over the
period for which funds are required, with a secondary objective of flexibility to
renegotiate loans should the Councils’ long-term plans change.

1.9.

LOBO loans: Mid Suffolk continues to hold £4m of LOBO loans (Lender’s Option
Borrower’s Option) where the lender has the option to propose an increase in the
interest rate at set dates, following which the Council has the option to either accept
the new rate or to repay the loan at no additional cost. The banks did not exercise
their option during 2019/20.

Page 42

Appendix C
1.

Treasury Investment Activity

1.1.

Babergh and Mid Suffolk hold invested funds, representing income received in
advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves. During 2019/20, Babergh’s
investment balance ranged between £10.5m and £24.1m. Mid Suffolk’s investment
balance ranged between £11.9m and £27. 1m. These movements are due to timing
differences between income and expenditure. The year-end investment position and
the year-on-year changes are shown in Table 5 as follows.

1.2.

Table 5: Treasury Investment Position
Both Councils made a new investment during the year in the Investec Series i
Diversified Income Fund on 24 May 2019.
31.3.19
Balance

Babergh
Banks & building societies (unsecured)
Money Market Funds
Schroder
UBS
CCLA
Investec
Funding Circle
Total investments

£m
1.421
1.000
2.000
2.000
5.000
0.000
0.430
11.851
31.3.19
Balance

Mid Suffolk
Banks & building societies (unsecured)
Money Market Funds
Schroder
UBS
CCLA
Investec
Funding Circle
UK Central Government (DMADF)
Total investments

Page 43

£m
1.480
1.400
2.000
2.000
5.000
0.000
0.423
0.000
12.303

2019/20 31.3.20
Movement Balance
£m
(0.038)
1.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
2.000
(0.216)
2.746

£m
1.383
2.000
2.000
2.000
5.000
2.000
0.214
14.597

2019/20 31.3.20
Movement Balance
£m
(0.030)
4.600
0.000
0.000
0.000
2.000
(0.208)
3.000
9.362

£m
1.450
6.000
2.000
2.000
5.000
2.000
0.215
3.000
21.665

31.3.20
Average
Rate
%
0.65%
0.65%
7.16%
4.43%
4.35%
3.74%
4.83%

31.3.20
Average
Rate
%
0.65%
0.72%
7.16%
4.42%
4.30%
3.74%
4.85%
0.50%

Appendix C cont’d
1.3.

Table 5 - Charts: Investment Position at 31 March 2020.
Babergh Treasury Investment
Portfolio at 31 March 2020
Funding Circle
1%

Banks etc
9%

Investec
14%

Money Market
Funds
14%

CCLA
34%

Schroder
14%
UBS
14%

Mid Suffolk Treasury Investment
Portfolio at 31 March 2020
Funding Circle
1%

Investec
11%

Banks etc
8%
CCLA
27%

Money Market
Funds
32%

UBS
11%

1.4.

Schroder
10%

Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance requires Councils to invest their
funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of their treasury
investments before seeking the optimum rate of return, or yield. The Councils’
objectives when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and
return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving
unsuitably low investment income.

Page 44

Appendix C cont’d
1.5.

Babergh and Mid Suffolk have both followed the treasury management strategy to
move investments into long term pooled funds. Given the increasing risk and falling
returns from short-term unsecured bank investments, the Councils diversified into
more higher yielding asset classes; pooled property, multi asset and equity funds. As
a result, investment risk was diversified. The average rate of return is significantly
higher than the comparable average returns of Arlingclose’s other clients, as shown
in the table below. The progression of risk and return metrics are shown in the extracts
from Arlingclose’s quarterly investment benchmarking for the year end in Table 6 that
follows.

1.6.

Table 6: Investment Benchmarking - Treasury investments managed in-house

Babergh
At 31.03.2019
At 31.03.2020
Similar Local authorities
All Local authorities

Mid Suffolk
At 31.03.2019
At 31.03.2020
Similar Local authorities
All Local authorities

Credit
Score
5.17
4.92
4.11
4.11

Credit
Rating
A+
A+
AAAA-

Bail-in
Rate of
Exposure Return
92%
4.13%
93%
4.34%
63%
1.75%
60%
1.43%

Credit
Score
5.16
4.79
4.11
4.11

Credit
Rating
A+
A+
AAAA-

Bail-in
Rate of
Exposure Return
93%
4.00%
96%
3.85%
63%
1.75%
60%
1.43%

1.7.

Bail-in involves the shareholders and creditors of a failing financial institution meeting
the costs, instead of the government. As Babergh and Mid Suffolk have relatively
small investment portfolios their bail-in exposure is proportionately higher than the
local authorities in Arlingclose’s benchmarking group. Babergh and Mid Suffolk have
chosen to adopt a strategy of generating higher returns by investing funds available
in banks and strategic pooled funds.

1.8.

Babergh has £11.2m of externally managed pooled equity, property and multi assets
funds which generated an average total income return, since the date of the initial
investments, of £2m (average rate of return for the year 4.9%) which is used to
support the Councils’ service provision.

1.9.

Mid Suffolk has £11.2m of externally managed pooled equity, property and multi
assets funds which generated an average total income return, since the date of the
initial investments, of £1.9m (average rate of return for the year 4.89%) which is used
to support the Councils’ service provision.

1.10.

These funds have no defined maturity date but are available for withdrawal after a
notice period. Their performance and continued suitability in meeting the Councils’
investment objectives are regularly reviewed. In light of their performance and the
Councils’ latest cash flow forecasts, investment in these funds has been maintained,
except for Funding Circle which is being reduced over the period of the repayment
of the remaining loans.
Page 45

Appendix C cont’d
1.11.

During the year the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG) consulted on statutory overrides relating to the IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments accounting standard effective from 2018/19.
The consultation
recognised that the requirement in IFRS 9 for certain investments to be accounted
for as fair value through profit and loss may introduce “more income statement
volatility” which may impact on budget calculations. As a result of the consultations
a time-limited statutory override of 5 years was applied to pooled funds and this was
applied in both Councils’ statements of accounts for 2018/19 and 2019/20.

1.12.

The Councils’ borrowing decisions are not predicated on any one outcome for
interest rates and a balanced portfolio of short- and long-term borrowing was
maintained.

2

Non-Treasury Holdings and Other Investment Activity

2.1

The definition of investments in CIPFA’s revised Treasury Management Code now
covers all the financial assets of the Councils as well as other non-financial assets
which the Councils hold primarily for financial return. This is replicated in MHCLG’s
Investment Guidance, in which the definition of investments is further broadened to
include all such assets held partially for financial return.

2.2

Investment Property

2.3

During 2016/17 Babergh purchased Borehamgate Shopping Centre in Sudbury for
£3.6m. This has been classified as an investment property and on 31 March 2020 it
was assessed at fair value of £4.1m. Net Income, after the deduction of direct costs,
was £187k in 2019/20 (£177k in 2018/19). Income from rentals stabilised during the
year and the asset is being actively managed by the Council to secure new tenants.

2.4

Trading Companies

2.5

At the 31 March 2020 Babergh held £3m of equity in BDC (Suffolk Holdings) Ltd and
Mid Suffolk held £3m of equity in MSDC (Suffolk Holdings) Ltd. Both Councils own
100% shares in each holding company.

2.6

The holding companies have invested 50% in Babergh Growth Limited and Mid
Suffolk Growth Limited during the year.

2.7

Babergh and Mid Suffolk’s respective 50% share of the loss made by CIFCO Ltd in
2019/20 was £748k (2018/19 was £2.3m) and is reflected in the reduced value of
each of the Council’s equity holding in the company. These losses include the oneoff costs of acquiring two additional assets during 2019/20 (including stamp duty and
fees) and an adjustment in portfolio valuation following the annual year-end
revaluation reflecting a reduction in the portfolio value of 5.66%.

2.8

The total equity investment by both Councils to full investment (£100m) will be £10m
(10%) and total acquisition costs for the full investment are estimated to be £6.75m
and as such it is anticipated that equity will reduce further to reflect the costs of
acquisition to full investment as well as any fluctuations in market value.

Page 46

Appendix C cont’d
2.9

At the 31 March 2020 Babergh and Mid Suffolk each have £26.9m of loans (valued
at £26.4m after a £603k impairment allowance) in CIFCO Ltd, a subsidiary of BDC
(Suffolk Holdings) Ltd and MSDC (Suffolk Holdings) Ltd. These loans have generated
£3m of investment income for each Council since the start of trading. The net position
for 2019/20, after borrowing costs, is shown in Table 7.

2.10

Mid Suffolk also held £18.7m of loans (valued at £18.6m after a £112k impairment
allowance) in another subsidiary of MSDC (Suffolk Holdings) Ltd, Gateway 14 Ltd,
which has generated £1.4m of accrued investment income since the initial loans were
advanced by the Council in August 2018.

2.11

The loss incurred by Gateway 14 Ltd was £119k resulting in a reduction in the
Council’s overall equity holding to £1.3m. This company is still in the early stages of
developing land and building projects for which it was created and has yet to generate
income.

3

Treasury Performance

3.1

The Councils measure the financial performance of treasury management activities
in terms of their impact on the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account revenue
budgets as shown in Table 7 that follows.

3.2

Table 7 Treasury Activity - Performance

Babergh

2019/20
Budget

2019/20
Actual

£m

£m

Variance
Adverse/
(Favourable)
£m

Interest Receivable
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
CIFCO Ltd
Total Interest Receivable

(0.469)
(0.010)
(1.545)
(2.023)

(0.545)
(0.026)
(1.245)
(1.816)

(0.076)
(0.016)
0.300
0.208

Interest Payable
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
CIFCO Ltd
Total Interest Payable

0.039
3.117
0.541
3.697

0.000
2.826
0.316
3.142

(0.039)
(0.291)
(0.225)
(0.555)

Net Interest
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
CIFCO Ltd
Total Net Interest

(0.430)
3.107
(1.004)
1.674

(0.545)
2.800
(0.928)
1.326

(0.115)
(0.307)
0.075
(0.347)

Page 47

Appendix C cont’d

Mid Suffolk

2019/20
Budget

2019/20
Actual

£m

£m

Variance
Adverse/
(Favourable)
£m

Interest Receivable
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
CIFCO Ltd
Gateway 14 Ltd
Total Interest Receivable

(0.280)
(0.008)
(1.545)
(1.030)
(2.862)

(0.557)
(0.016)
(1.245)
(0.922)
(2.740)

(0.277)
(0.008)
0.300
0.108
0.123

Interest Payable
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
CIFCO Ltd
Gateway 14 Ltd
Total Interest Payable

0.229
2.912
0.651
0.282
4.074

0.029
2.678
0.542
0.219
3.469

(0.200)
(0.234)
(0.109)
(0.063)
(0.605)

Net Interest
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
CIFCO Ltd
Gateway 14 Ltd
Total Net Interest

(0.051)
2.904
(0.894)
(0.748)
1.212

(0.528)
2.663
(0.703)
(0.703)
0.729

(0.477)
(0.241)
0.191
0.045
(0.482)

3.3

The interest receivable for Babergh and Mid Suffolk were both less than budgeted by
£208k and £123k respectively. This is mainly due to investments in CIFCO Ltd being
deferred whilst suitable properties to purchase were being identified.

3.4

The total interest payable for the year was under budget by £555k for Babergh and
£605k for Mid Suffolk. This is due to the timing of the purchases for CIFCO Ltd as
explained in 3.3 above and using short term local authority borrowing to fund CIFCO
Ltd and Gateway 14 Ltd at lower rates. All Babergh’s short term borrowing was
attributable to CIFCO Ltd only.

3.5

Long term investment returns

3.6

Babergh and Mid Suffolk have both invested in long term pooled funds. Tables 8.1 to
8.5 that follow show details of how these investments have performed during 2018/19
and 2019/20.

3.7

Both Councils invested £5m each into the CCLA Local Authority Property Fund.
Babergh purchased 1.657m units on 31 August 2015 and Mid Suffolk 1.632m units
on 29 October 2015. The valuations are based on the number of units owned.

Page 48

Appendix C cont’d
3.8

Table 8.1 CCLA Performance
Babergh
CCLA

Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment

31.3.18
2018/19
Balance Movement
£m
£m
5.000
0.000
4.927
0.077
0.583

Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

31.3.19
2019/20
Balance Movement
£m
£m
5.000
0.000
5.004
(0.179)

0.216

0.799

0.227
4.54%

0.217

0.216
4.32%

31.3.20
Balance
£m
5.000
4.825
1.016

0.217
4.35%

Mid Suffolk
CCLA

Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment

31.3.18

2018/19

Balance Movement
£m
£m
5.000
0.000
4.851
0.075
0.534

Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

0.208

0.224
4.47%

31.3.19

2019/20

31.3.20

Balance Movement
£m
£m
5.000
0.000
4.927
(0.176)

Balance
£m
5.000
4.750

0.743

0.215

0.208
4.17%

0.958

0.215
4.30%

3.9

Babergh and Mid Suffolk both invested into the Schroder Income maximiser fund on
10 February 2017.

3.10

Table 8.2 Schroder Performance
Schroder Maximiser Fund

Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

Schroder Maximiser Fund

Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

31.3.18
2018/19
Balance Movement
£m
£m
2.000
0.000
1.927
(0.051)
0.173

0.144

0.137
6.86%

31.3.18
Balance
£m
2.000
1.927

Babergh
31.3.19
2019/20
Balance Movement
£m
£m
2.000
0.000
1.876
(0.624)
0.317

0.143

0.144
7.20%

0.137
6.86%

Page 49

0.144

0.317

0.144
7.20%

0.460

0.143
7.16%

Mid Suffolk
2018/19
31.3.19
2019/20
Movement Balance Movement
£m
£m
£m
0.000
2.000
0.000
(0.051)
1.876
(0.624)

0.173

31.3.20
Balance
£m
2.000
1.253

0.143

31.3.20
Balance
£m
2.000
1.253
0.460

0.143
7.16%

Appendix C cont’d
3.11

Babergh invested in the UBS Multi Asset income fund on 26 November 2015, whilst
Mid Suffolk invested in the fund on 28 March 2017.

3.12

Table 8.3 UBS Performance
UBS
Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

UBS
Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

31.3.18
2018/19
Balance Movement
£m
£m
2.000
0.000
1.923
(0.024)
0.192

0.082

0.075
3.74%

31.3.18
Balance
£m
2.000
1.920

Babergh
31.3.19
2019/20
Balance Movement
£m
£m
2.000
0.000
1.899
(0.242)
0.274

0.089

0.082
4.09%

0.082

0.075
3.73%

0.178

0.363

0.089
4.43%

Mid Suffolk
2018/19
31.3.19
2019/20
Movement Balance Movement
£m
£m
£m
0.000
2.000
0.000
(0.024)
1.896
(0.242)

0.096

31.3.20
Balance
£m
2.000
1.657

0.088

0.082
4.08%

31.3.20
Balance
£m
2.000
1.654
0.266

0.088
4.42%

3.13

Both Councils invested in Funding Circle on 1 November 2015 and has varied the
amounts invested since.

3.14

Table 8.4 Funding Circle Performance
Funding Circle

Amount Invested - National
Amount Invested - Local
Total Amount Invested
Bad debts to date
Accrued Interest
Valuation
Invested but still Unallocated National
Invested but still Unallocated - Local
Income received
Servicing costs
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

31.3.18
2018/19
Balance Movement
£m
£m
0.613
(0.208)
0.025
0.000
0.638
(0.208)
(0.016)
(0.015)
0.019
0.003
0.641
(0.220)

Babergh
31.3.19
2019/20
Balance Movement
£m
£m
0.405
(0.191)
0.025
(0.025)
0.430
(0.216)
(0.031)
(0.021)
0.022
(0.010)
0.421
(0.247)

31.3.20
Balance
£m
0.214
0.000
0.214
(0.052)
0.012
0.174

0.166
0.024

(0.009)
0.001

0.156
0.025

(0.087)
(0.025)

0.069
0.000

0.071
(0.008)

0.028
(0.003)

0.099
(0.012)

0.014
(0.002)

0.113
(0.013)

0.063

0.025

0.087

0.012

0.099

0.038
4.54%

Page 50

0.025
5.02%

0.012
4.83%

Appendix C cont’d

Funding Circle

Amount Invested - National
Amount Invested - Local
Total Amount Invested
Bad debts to date
Accrued Interest
Valuation
Invested but still Unallocated National
Invested but still Unallocated - Local
Income received
Servicing costs
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

Mid Suffolk
31.3.18
2018/19
31.3.19
2019/20
Balance Movement Balance Movement
£m
£m
£m
£m
0.617
(0.219)
0.398
(0.183)
0.025
0.000
0.025
(0.025)
0.642
(0.219)
0.423
(0.208)
(0.016)
(0.023)
(0.040)
(0.015)
0.017
(0.001)
0.016
(0.005)
0.643
(0.243)
0.399
(0.227)

31.3.20
Balance
£m
0.215
0.000
0.215
(0.055)
0.011
0.172

0.178
0.024

(0.029)
0.001

0.150
0.025

0.000
(0.025)

0.150
0.000

0.075
(0.009)

0.027
(0.003)

0.102
(0.012)

0.013
(0.002)

0.115
(0.013)

0.066

0.024

0.090

0.011

0.101

0.039
4.63%

0.024
4.78%

0.011
4.85%

3.15

Both Councils invested in the Investec Series i Diversified Income Fund on 24 May
2019. This fund aims to provide monthly income with the opportunity for long-term
capital growth, investing in equities, fixed income investments (e.g. corporate or
government bonds) as well as cash and money market funds.

3.16

Table 8.5 Investec Performance

Investec Series i Diversified Income
Fund
Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

31.3.18
2018/19
Balance Movement
£m
£m
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000

0.000
0.00%

Page 51

0.000

Babergh
31.3.19
2019/20
Balance Movement
£m
£m
0.000
2.000
0.000
1.815
0.000

0.000
0.00%

0.075

31.3.20
Balance
£m
2.000
1.815
0.075

0.075
3.74%

Appendix C cont’d

Investec Series i Diversified Income
Fund
Amount Invested
Investment Valuation
Cumulative Net Interest received
from date of initial investment
Annual Performance
Net Interest received in year
Average Rate of Return for year

31.3.18
Balance
£m
0.000
0.000
0.000

0.000
0.00%

Mid Suffolk
2018/19
31.3.19
2019/20
Movement Balance Movement
£m
£m
£m
0.000
0.000
2.000
0.000
0.000
1.815
0.000

0.000

0.000
0.00%

0.075

31.3.20
Balance
£m
2.000
1.815
0.075

0.075
3.74%

4.

Compliance Report

4.1.

The Section 151 Officer can report that, except for one occasion when Mid Suffolk
exceeded its daily bank account limit with Lloyds by £129k, as mentioned in
Paragraph 4.6 below, all treasury management activities undertaken complied fully
with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Councils’ approved Treasury Management
Strategy.

4.2.

Compliance with the authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt is
demonstrated in Table 9 as follows.

4.3.

Table 9: Debt Limits
Total Borrowing
Babergh
Mid Suffolk

4.4.

2019/20
Maximum
£m
112.523
135.339

31.3.20
2019/20
2019/20
Actual Operational Authorised Complied
£m
Boundary
Limit
112.523
157.000
172.000
✓
135.339
175.000
190.000
✓

Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring, it is not
significant if the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to variations in
cash flow, and this is not counted as a compliance failure.

Page 52

Appendix C cont’d
4.5.

Table 10: Investment Limits
Compliance with specific investment limits is demonstrated in Table 10 as follows.
Babergh
Any single organisation, except the UK Central Government
Any group of organisations under the same ownership
Any group of pooled funds under the same management
Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s nominee account
Foreign countries
Registered Providers
Unsecured investments with Building Societies
Loans to unrated corporates
Money Market Funds
Mid Suffolk
Any single organisation, except the UK Central Government
Any group of organisations under the same ownership
Any group of pooled funds under the same management
Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s nominee account
Foreign countries
Registered Providers
Unsecured investments with Building Societies
Loans to unrated corporates
Money Market Funds

2019/20
Maximum
£m
1.886
0.000
5.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.430
2.000

31.3.20
Actual
£m
1.375
0.000
5.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.214
2.000

2019/20
Limit
£m
2.000
1.000
5.000
10.000
2.000
5.000
2.000
1.000
2.000

2019/20
Maximum
£m
2.129
0.000
5.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.423
2.000

31.3.20
Actual
£m
0.948
0.000
5.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.215
2.000

2019/20
Limit
£m
2.000
1.000
5.000
10.000
2.000
5.000
2.000
1.000
2.000

Complied
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓

Complied
x
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓

4.6. It should be noted that both Council’s treasury management activity for 2019/20 was
in accordance with the approved Treasury Management Strategy, and that, except
for one day when Mid Suffolk exceeded its daily bank account limit with Lloyds by
£129k, both Councils have complied with all the Treasury Management Indicators for
this period. This was due to the timing of a large value CIL payment being received
too late in the banking day to be invested, causing the limit to be exceeded.

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix D
1. Treasury Management Indicators
1.1.

The Councils measure and manage their exposure to treasury management risks
using the following indicators:

1.2.

Security: Babergh and Mid Suffolk have adopted a voluntary measure of their
exposure to credit risk by monitoring the value-weighted average credit score of their
investment portfolios. This is calculated by applying a score to each investment
(AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each
investment. Unrated investments are assigned a score based on their perceived risk.
These are shown in Table 11 that follows.

1.3.

Table 11: Credit Scores
Credit Scores
Babergh Portfolio average Credit Score
Mid Suffolk Portfolio average Credit Score

31.3.20
Actual
4.92
4.79

2019/20
Target
7.00
7.00

Complied
✓
✓

1.4.

Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to control the Councils’ exposure to
interest rate risk. The upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures,
expressed as the proportion of net principal borrowed are shown in Table 12 that
follows.

1.5.

Table 12: Fixed Interest rate exposure

Fixed Interest rate exposure
Babergh Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposure
Babergh Upper limit on variable interest rate exposure
Mid Suffolk Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposure
Mid Suffolk Upper limit on variable interest rate exposure

31.3.20
Actual
£m
96.02
16.50
90.94
24.40

2019/20 Complied
Limit
£m
136.00
✓
35.00
✓
154.00
40.00

✓
✓

1.6.

Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is fixed
for at least 12 months measured from the start of the financial year or the transaction
date if later. All other instruments are classed as variable rate.

1.7.

Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Councils’
exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of
fixed rate borrowing are shown in Table 13 as follows.

Page 55

Appendix D cont’d
1.8.

Table 13: Maturity Structures
Babergh Mid Suffolk
Lower Upper
31.3.20
31.3.20
Limit Limit
Actual
Actual
15.49%
19.04%
0%
50%
0.62%
12.74%
0%
50%
6.83%
2.50%
0%
50%
7.54%
14.75%
0%
100%
64.49%
23.53%
0%
100%
3.43%
21.84%
0%
100%
1.60%
5.61%
0%
100%

Age Profile of Maturity
Under 12 months
12 months and within 24 months
24 months and within 5 years
5 years and within 10 years
10 years and within 20 years
20 years and within 40 years
Over 40 years

1.9.

Complied

✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

1.10. Table 13 Chart: Maturity Structures

1.11. Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 365 days: The purpose of this
indicator is to control the Councils’ exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking
early repayment of investments. The limits on the long-term principal sum invested
to final maturities beyond the period end are shown in Table 14 that follows.

Page 56

Appendix D cont’d
1.12. Table 14: Principal Sums
Babergh
Actual principal invested beyond year end
Limit on principal invested beyond year end
Complied

2019/20
£0
£2m
✓

2020/21
£0
£2m
✓

2021/22
£0
£2m
✓

Mid Suffolk
Actual principal invested beyond year end
Limit on principal invested beyond year end
Complied

2019/20
£0
£2m
✓

2020/21
£0
£2m
✓

2021/22
£0
£2m
✓

1.13. Whilst the investments that have been made in CCLA, UBS, Schroder, Investec and
Funding Circle are intended to benefit from longer term higher returns, they can be
redeemed on a short-term basis.

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix E
1.

Prudential Indicators

1.1.

Introduction

1.2.

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Councils to have regard to the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) when determining how much
money it can afford to borrow. The objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure,
within a clear framework, that the capital investment plans of local authorities are
affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that treasury management decisions are
taken in accordance with good professional practice. To demonstrate that councils
have fulfilled these objectives, the Prudential Code sets out the following indicators
that must be set and monitored each year.

1.3.

This report compares the approved indicators with the outturn position for 2019/20.
Actual figures have been taken from, or prepared on a basis consistent with, the
Councils’ Statements of Accounts for 2019/20.

1.4.

Capital Expenditure

1.5.

The Councils’ capital expenditure and financing for 2019/20 compared to budget is
summarised in table 15 below.

1.6.

Table 15: Capital Expenditure and Financing

Babergh District Council
Capital Expenditure and Financing
General Fund
HRA
Total Expenditure
Capital Receipts
Grants and Contributions
Revenue Contributions and Reserves
Major Repairs Reserve
Borrowing
Total Financing

Page 59

2019/20
Budget

2019/20
Actual

£m
28.620
23.260
51.880
7.670
4.380
4.260
3.310
32.260
51.880

£m
8.751
9.598
18.349
1.643
0.539
1.381
3.812
10.974
18.349

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
£m
(19.869)
(13.662)
(33.531)
(6.027)
(3.841)
(2.879)
0.502
(21.286)
(33.531)

Appendix E cont’d
Mid Suffolk District Council
2019/20

2019/20

Capital Expenditure and Financing

Budget

Actual

General Fund
HRA
Total Expenditure
Capital Receipts
Grants and Contributions
Revenue Contributions and Reserves
Major Repairs Reserve
Borrowing
Total Financing

£m
31.010
12.260
43.270
1.720
0.710
3.780
3.710
33.350
43.270

£m
11.541
4.458
15.999
0.268
1.020
0.273
4.007
10.431
15.999

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
£m
(19.469)
(7.802)
(27.271)
(1.452)
0.310
(3.507)
0.297
(22.919)
(27.271)

1.

Prudential Indicator Compliance

1.1.

Capital Financing Requirement

1.2.

The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Councils' underlying need
to borrow for capital purposes.

1.3.

Table 16: Capital Financing Requirement

Babergh District Council
Capital Financing Requirement
General Fund
HRA
Total CFR

31.3.20
Budget

31.3.20
Actual

£m
71.410
91.060
162.470

£m
51.680
89.585
141.265

31.3.20
Budget

31.3.20
Actual

£m
96.400
91.750
188.150

£m
75.691
87.970
163.661

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
£m
(19.730)
(1.475)
(21.205)

Mid Suffolk District Council
Capital Financing Requirement
General Fund
HRA
Total CFR
1.4.

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
£m
(20.709)
(3.780)
(24.489)

The CFR increased during the year for Babergh by £9.5m and for Mid Suffolk by
£9.4m as capital expenditure financed by debt outweighed resources put aside for
debt repayment. These figures are shown in Appendix A Table 1.

Page 60

Appendix E cont’d
2.

Actual Debt

2.1.

The Councils’ actual debt at 31 March 2020 was as follows:

2.2.

Table 17: Total Debt

31.3.20
Budget

Total Debt

£m
147.680
166.120

Babergh District Council
Mid Suffolk District Council

31.3.20
Actual

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
£m
£m
112.523
(35.157)
135.339
(30.781)

3.

Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement

3.1.

In order to ensure that over the medium-term debt will only be for a capital purpose,
the Councils’ should ensure that debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the
total of capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any
additional capital financing requirement for the current and next two financial years.
This is a key indicator of prudence.

3.2.

The total debt remained below the CFR during the forecast period, which shows
compliance with the indicator.

3.3.

Table 18: Debt and Capital Financing Requirement
Babergh District Council
Debt and CFR
Total Debt
Capital financing requirement
Headroom

31.3.20
Actual
£m
112.523
141.265
28.742

31.3.20
Estimate
£m
122.960
156.430
33.470

31.3.21
Estimate
£m
138.210
177.770
39.560

31.3.20
Actual
£m
135.339
163.661
28.322

31.3.20
Estimate
£m
139.580
174.810
35.230

31.3.21
Estimate
£m
169.900
193.410
23.510

Mid Suffolk District Council
Debt and CFR
Total Debt
Capital financing requirement
Headroom

4.

Operational Boundary for External Debt

4.1.

The operational boundary is based on the Councils’ estimate of the most likely (i.e.
prudent but not worst case) scenario for external debt. It links directly to the Councils’
estimates of capital expenditure, the capital financing requirement, and cash flow
requirements, and is a key management tool for in-year monitoring.

Page 61

Appendix E cont’d
4.2.

Table 19: Operational Boundary and Total Debt

Operational Boundary and Total Debt

31.3.20
Boundary
£m
157.000
175.000

Babergh District Council
Mid Suffolk District Council

31.3.20
Actual
Debt
£m
112.523
135.339

Complied
✓
✓

5.

Authorised Limit for External Debt

5.1.

The authorised limit is the affordable borrowing limit determined in compliance with
the Local Government Act 2003. It is the maximum amount of debt that the Councils
can legally owe. The authorised limit provides headroom over and above the
operational boundary for unusual cash movements.

5.2.

Table 20: Authorised Limit and Total Debt
31.3.20
Limit

Authorised Limit and Total Debt

£m
172.000
190.000

Babergh District Council
Mid Suffolk District Council

31.3.20
Actual
Debt
£m
112.523
135.339

Complied
✓
✓

6.

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

6.1.

This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing
and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget
required to meet financing costs, net of investment income (shown as a percentage).

6.2.

Table 21: Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream
Babergh District Council
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue
Stream

31.3.20
Budget
%
(3.50)
18.92

General Fund
HRA

31.3.20
Actual

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
%
%
(3.79)
(0.29)
17.21
(1.71)

Mid Suffolk District Council
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue
Stream

31.3.20
Budget
%
(5.04)
19.92

General Fund
HRA

Page 62

31.3.20
Actual

Variance
Adverse /
(Favourable)
%
%
(6.59)
(1.55)
18.29
(1.64)

Appendix E cont’d
7.

Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code

7.1.

Both Councils adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s
“Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 2011 Edition” in
February 2012.

8.

HRA Limit on Indebtedness

8.1.

The limit imposed on the Council’s HRA borrowing by the Ministry for Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) has been removed.

Page 63

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix F
Glossary of Terms
BPS

CDS

CFR
CIPFA
CPI
CCLA
DMADF
Funding
Circle
GDP

HRA

INVESTEC
LIBID
LOBO

MHCLG
MPC

MRP
PWLB
UBS

Base Points. A unit of percentage measure equal to 0.01%. Basis points
are commonly used when discussing changes to interest rates, equity
indices, and fixed-income securities.
Credit Default Swap. In effect, insurance against non-payment. Through a
CDS, the buyer can mitigate the risk of their investment by shifting all or a
portion of that risk onto an insurance company or other CDS seller in
exchange for a periodic fee. In this way, the buyer of a credit default swap
receives credit protection, whereas the seller of the swap guarantees the
credit worthiness of the debt security.
Capital Financing Requirement. The underlying need to borrow to finance
capital expenditure.
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. This is the
leading professional accountancy body for public services.
Consumer Price Index. This measures changes in the price level of
consumer goods and services purchased by households.
Churches, Charities and Local Authority Property Fund
Debt Management Account Deposit Facility.
Accounts set up to lend money to local and national businesses at
competitive rates
Gross Domestic Product. This is the market value of all officially
recognised goods and services produced within a country in a given
period of time.
Housing Revenue Account. The statutory account to which are charged
the revenue costs of providing, maintaining and managing Council
dwellings. These costs are financed by tenants’ rents.
Investec Diversified Income Fund (UK) – a pooled fund.
London Interbank Bid Rate. The interest rate at which banks bid to take
short-term deposits from other banks in the London interbank market.
Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option. This is a loan where the lender has
certain dates when they can increase the interest rate payable and, if they
do, the Council has the option of accepting the new rate or repaying the
loan.
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government. This is a
ministerial department.
Monetary Policy Committee. A committee of the Bank of England which
decides the Bank of England’s Base Rate and other aspects of the
Government’s Monetary Policy.
Minimum Revenue Provision. Local authorities are required to make a
prudent provision for debt redemption on General Fund borrowing
Public Works Loan Board - offers loans to local authorities below market
rates.
UBS Multi Asset Income Fund (UK) – a pooled fund.

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
BABERGH DISTRICT COUNCIL and MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL
TO:

Joint Audit and Standards
Committee

REPORT NUMBER:

FROM:

Monitoring Officer

DATE OF MEETING: 11 August 2020

OFFICER:

Emily Yule – Assistant
Director for Law &
Governance and Monitoring
Officer

JAC/19/25

RESPONSE TO THE CONSULTATION ON THE LGA DRAFT MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT

1.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of this report is to gain the Joint Audit and Standards Committee’s
approval of the Councils’ response to the consultation on the LGA Draft Model Code
of Conduct for Members. The Committee has delegated authority from Full Council
to deal with matters relating to the Code of Conduct, except for the adoption of a
Code of Conduct which is reserved to Full Council and the undertaking of hearings
for Code of Conduct Complaints which is delegated to the Joint Standards Board.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That the draft consultation response be considered and amended as required by the
committee, and

2.2

That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to submit the agreed consultation response
on behalf of Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Councils.

3.

KEY INFORMATION

3.1

The Localism Act 2011 required all local authorities to adopt a new Code of Conduct
for Members, or update their existing one, to ensure that the code complied with and
promoted the Seven Principles of Public Life or ‘Nolan Principles’ and adequately
addressed the declaration of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests. The Nolan
Principles are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

3.2

Selflessness;
Integrity;
Objectivity
Accountability
Openness
Honesty
Leadership

Local authorities could choose to adopt a model code of conduct produced by the
LGA or their own local code of conduct. In 2012 Babergh and Mid Suffolk District

Page 67

Councils resolved to adopt the Suffolk Local Code of Conduct1. This Code of Conduct
has been adopted by all Suffolk Councils including Town and Parish Councils. District
Monitoring Officers also have responsibility for dealing with conduct matters in Town
and Parish Councils, therefore having a county-wide Code of Conduct is highly
advantageous as the same scheme is applied across the board.
3.3

On 30 January 2019 the Committee on Standards in Public Life published its report
“Local Government Ethical Standards”. One of the key recommendations from the
report was that “the Local Government Association should create an updated model
code of conduct, in consultation with representative bodies of councillors and officers
of all tiers of local government”. Hence the LGA has produced a draft new Model
Code Of Conduct (appendix A) in partnership with key stakeholders which has been
published for consultation from 8 June to 17 August 2020.

3.4

The Committee on Standards in Public Life also made further recommendations
which are relevant to the drafting of the new model code, notably:
•
•
•

•

•
•
•

That Councillors should be presumed to be acting in an official capacity in their
public conduct, including on social media,
That the register of gifts and hospitality threshold be in increased to £50 for a
single item and that multiple items totalling £100 or more from a single source
should be declared,
That a councillor must not participate in a discussion or vote in a matter to be
considered at a meeting if they have any interest, whether registered or not,
“if a member of the public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would
reasonably regard the interest as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your
consideration or decision-making in relation to that matter”,
That Local Authorities should be able to suspend Councillors, and withhold the
payment of allowances, for up to 6 months but only where the Independent
Person and the Monitoring Officer are both in agreement that this is an
appropriate sanction,
That Councillors who have been suspended should be able to appeal to the
Local Government Ombudsman,
That the Localism Act 2011 be amended to state that Town and Parish
Councils must adopt the Code of Conduct of their Principal Authority or the
Model Code,
That the criminal offences relating to disclosable pecuniary interests should be
abolished.

3.5

The LGA draft Model Code of Conduct has been developed in consultation with the
sector and the LGA has committed to undertake an annual review of the Model Code
to ensure it continues to be fit for purpose, particularly with respect to advances in
technology, social media and any relevant changes in legislation. The amendments
to the Code proposed by the LGA are restricted to those which can be made without
changes to the current legislation.

3.6

The LGA is inviting Councils, individual Councillors and Monitoring Officers to
respond to a consultation on the draft new model code. A copy of the consultation
questions is attached at appendix B. The Monitoring Officer has prepared a proposed
response to the consultation (appendix C) for consideration, amendment and
approval by the Joint Audit and Standards Committee which will then be submitted

1

Babergh District Council on 19 June 2012, Mid Suffolk District Council on 21 June 2012

Page 68

as the Councils’ formal response to the consultation. This will not prevent any
Councillor submitting an individual response in a personal capacity.
3.7

Once the Model Code has been agreed and published by the LGA the Councils will
need to consider whether to adopt the Model Code in its entirety or a Local Code of
Conduct which fulfils the key requirements. It would be desirable to continue to have
a Suffolk-wide Code of Conduct to provide consistency across the County and
throughout the tiers of Local Government. Training will be provided to all Councillors
on any amendments to the adopted Code of Conduct.

4.

LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN

4.1

There are no specific links to the corporate plan, however the Member Code of
Conduct is a key part of the Councils’ governance arrangements.

5.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1

There are no financial impacts to the Councils by responding to this consultation.

6.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no legal implications of the Councils responding to this consultation.

7.

RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1

Key risks are set out below:
Risk Description

Likelihood

The Councils miss Low
the opportunity to
contribute to the
development of a
new model Code
of Conduct for
Members

Impact

Mitigation
Measures

Low

The Joint Audit
Standards
Committee
is
asked to agree a
consultation
response.

8.

CONSULTATIONS

8.1

This report has been prepared in consultation with the Cabinet Members for Law &
Governance, the Deputy Monitoring Officers and the Independent Persons appointed
for the purpose of considering Code of Conduct complaints.

9.

EQUALITY ANALYSIS

9.1

An Equality Impact Assessment is not required for the purpose of responding to the
consultation. However, a full Equality Impact Assessment will be required if the
Councils choose to adopt a new model Code of Conduct.

10.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

Page 69

10.1

There are no environmental impacts of responding to this consultation. The
consultation is online and Councils response will be submitted electronically.

11.

APPENDICES
Title

Location

(a) Draft LGA Model Code of Conduct for Attached
Consultation
(b) Draft LGA Model Code
Consultation Questions

of

Conduct Attached

(c) Suggested Consultation Response

Attached

12.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

12.1

None

Page 70

Local
Government
Association
Model Member
Code of Conduct

Consultation
Page
71 Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft
Local Government Association
Model

1

Introduction

The Local Government Association (LGA) is providing this Model Member Code of Conduct as
part of its work on supporting the sector to continue to aspire to high standards of leadership
and performance.
The role of councillor in all tiers of local government is a vital part of our country’s system of
democracy. In voting for a local councillor, the public is imbuing that person and position with
their trust. As such, it is important that as councillors we can be held accountable and all adopt
the behaviours and responsibilities associated with the role. The conduct of an individual
councillor affects the reputation of all councillors. We want the role of councillor to be one that
people aspire to and want to participate with. We want to continue to attract individuals from a
range of backgrounds and circumstances who understand the responsibility they take on and
are motivated to make a positive difference to their local communities.
All councils are required to have a local Member Code of Conduct. This Model Member Code
of Conduct has been developed in consultation with the sector and is offered as a template for
councils to adopt in whole and/or with local amendments. The LGA will undertake an annual
review of the Code to ensure it continues to be fit-for-purpose, particularly with respect to
advances in technology, social media and any relevant changes in legislation. The LGA can
also offer support, training and mediation to councils and councillors on the application of the
Code, whilst the National Association of Local Councils (NALC) and the county associations of
local councils can offer advice and support to town and parish councils.
As a councillor we all represent local residents, work to develop better services and deliver
local change. The public have high expectations of us and entrust us to represent everyone
(in our ward/town/parish), taking decisions fairly, openly, transparently and with civility.
Councillors should also be treated with civility by members of the public, other councillors
and council employees. Members have both individual and collective responsibility to
maintain these standards, support expected behaviour and challenge behaviour which falls
below expectations. This Code, therefore, has been designed to protect our democratic role,
encourage good conduct and safeguard the public’s trust in local government.

Councillor Nick Forbes CBE
Leader, LGA Labour Group

Councillor Izzi Seccombe OBE
Leader, LGA Conservative Group

Councillor Howard Sykes MBE
Leader, LGA Liberal Democrats Group

Councillor Marianne Overton MBE
Leader, LGA independent Group
Page 72

Purpose

Model member conduct

The purpose of this Code of Conduct
is to assist councillors in modelling the
behaviour that is expected of them, to
provide a personal check and balance,
and to set out the type of conduct against
which appropriate action may be taken. It
is also to protect yourself, the public, fellow
councillors, council officers and the reputation
of local government. It sets out the conduct
expected of all members and a minimum
set of obligations relating to conduct. The
overarching aim is to create and maintain
public confidence in the role of member
and local government.

In accordance with the public trust placed in
me, on all occasions I will:

Application of the Code
The Code of Conduct applies to you when
you are acting [or claiming or giving the
impression that you are acting]1 in [public
or in]2 your capacity as a member or
representative of your council, although you
are expected to uphold high standards of
conduct and show leadership at all times.
The Code applies to all forms of member
communication and interaction, including
written, verbal, non-verbal, electronic and
via social media, [including where you could
be deemed to be representing your council
or if there are potential implications for the
council’s reputation.] Model conduct and
expectations is for guidance only, whereas the
specific obligations set out instances where
action will be taken.

The seven principles
of public life

• act with integrity and honesty
• act lawfully
• treat all persons with civility; and
• lead by example and act in a way that
secures public confidence in the office
of councillor
In undertaking my role, I will:
• impartially exercise my responsibilities
in the interests of the local community
• not improperly seek to confer an
advantage, or disadvantage, on any person
• avoid conflicts of interest
• exercise reasonable care and diligence;
and
• ensure that public resources are used
prudently and in the public interest

Specific obligations
of general conduct
This section sets out the minimum
requirements of member conduct. Guidance
is included to help explain the reasons for the
obligations and how they should be followed.
These obligations must be observed in all
situations where you act [or claim or give the
impression that you are acting] as a councillor
[or in public], including representing your
council on official business and when using
social media.

Everyone in public office at all levels –
ministers, civil servants, members, council
officers – all who serve the public or deliver
public services should uphold the seven
principles of public life. This Code has been
developed in line with these seven principles
of public life, which are set out in appendix A.

Page
73 Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft
Local Government Association
Model

3

As a councillor I commit to:

Civility
1. Treating other councillors and
members of the public with civility.
2. Treating council employees, employees
and representatives of partner
organisations and those volunteering
for the councils with civility and
respecting the role that they play.
Civility means politeness and courtesy in
behaviour, speech, and in the written word.
Debate and having different views are all part
of a healthy democracy. As a councillor you
can express, challenge, criticise and disagree
with views, ideas, opinions and policies
in a civil manner. You should not subject
individuals, groups of people or organisations
to unreasonable or excessive personal attack.
In your contact with the public you should
treat them courteously. Rude and offensive
behaviour lowers the public’s expectations
and confidence in its elected representatives.
In return you have a right to expect courtesy
from the public. If members of the public are
being abusive, threatening or intimidatory you
are entitled to close down any conversation
in person or online, refer them to the council,
any social media provider or if necessary, the
police. This also applies to members, where
action could then be taken under the Member
Code of Conduct.

Bullying and harassment
3. Not bullying or harassing any person.
Bullying may be characterised as offensive,
intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour,
an abuse or misuse of power through means
that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or
injure the recipient. The bullying might be
a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off
incident, happen face-to-face, on social
media, in emails or phone calls, happen in the
workplace or at work social events and not
always be obvious or noticed by others.

4

The Equality Act 2010 defines harassment
as ‘unwanted conduct related to a relevant
protected characteristic, which has the
purpose or effect of violating an individual’s
dignity or creating an intimidating, hostile,
degrading, humiliating or offensive
environment for that individual’. The relevant
protected characteristics are age, disability,
gender reassignment, race, religion or belief,
sex, and sexual orientation.

Impartiality of officers
of the council
4. Not compromising, or attempting to
compromise, the impartiality of anyone
who works for, or on behalf of, the
council.
Officers work for the council as a whole
and must be politically neutral (unless they
are political assistants). They should not be
coerced or persuaded to act in a way that
would undermine their neutrality. Although you
can question officers in order to understand,
for example, their reasons for proposing to
act in a particular way, or the content of a
report that they have written, you must not try
and force them to act differently, change their
advice, or alter the content of that report, if
doing so would prejudice their professional
integrity.

Confidentiality and
access to information
5. Not disclosing information given to me
in confidence or disclosing information
acquired by me which I believe is of
a confidential nature, unless I have
received the consent of a person
authorised to give it or I am required
by law to do so.
6. Not preventing anyone getting
information that they are entitled
to by law.
Local authorities must work openly and
transparently, and their proceedings and

Page
74of Conduct – consultation draft
Local Government Association Model Member
Code

printed materials are open to the public
except in certain circumstances. You should
work on this basis but there will be times
when it is required by law that discussions,
documents and other information relating
to or held by the council are treated in a
confidential manner. Examples include
personal data relating to individuals or
information relating to ongoing negotiations.

Disrepute
7. Not bringing my role or council
into disrepute.
Behaviour that is considered dishonest
and/or deceitful can bring your council into
disrepute. As a member you have been
entrusted to make decisions on behalf of your
community and your actions and behaviour
are subject to greater scrutiny than that of
ordinary members of the public. You should
be aware that your actions might have an
adverse impact on other councillors and/or
your council.

Your position
8. Not using, or attempting to use,
my position improperly to the
advantage or disadvantage of myself
or anyone else.
Your position as a member of the council
provides you with certain opportunities,
responsibilities and privileges. However,
you should not take advantage of these
opportunities to further private interests.

Use of council resources
and facilities
9. Not misusing council resources.
You may be provided with resources and
facilities by the council to assist you in
carrying out your duties as a councillor.
Examples include office support, stationery
and equipment such as phones, and
computers and transport. These are given

to you to help you carry out your role as a
councillor more effectively and not to benefit
you personally.

Interests
10. Registering and declaring my interests.
You need to register your interests so that
the public, council employees and fellow
members know which of your interests might
give rise to a conflict of interest. The register
is a document that can be consulted when (or
before) an issue arises, and so allows others
to know what interests you have, and whether
they might give rise to a possible conflict of
interest. The register also protects you. You
are responsible for deciding whether or not
you should declare an interest in a meeting,
but it can be helpful for you to know early on
if others think that a potential conflict might
arise.
It is also important that the public know
about any interest that might have to be
declared by you or other members, so that
decision making is seen by the public as
open and honest. This helps to ensure that
public confidence in the integrity of local
governance is maintained. Discuss the
registering and declaration of interests with
your Monitoring Officer/Town or Parish Clerk
and more detail is set out in appendix B.

Gifts and hospitality
11. Not accepting significant gifts or
hospitality from persons seeking to
acquire, develop or do business with
the council or from persons who may
apply to the council for any permission,
licence or other significant advantage.
12. Registering with the monitoring officer
any gift or hospitality with an estimated
value of at least £25 within 28 days of
its receipt.
You should exercise caution in accepting
any gifts or hospitality which are (or which
you reasonably believe to be) offered to you

Page
75 Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft
Local Government Association
Model

5

because you are a member. However, you
do not need to register gifts and hospitality
which are not related to your role as a
member, such as Christmas gifts from your
friends and family, or gifts which you do not
accept. However, you may wish to notify your
monitoring officer of any significant gifts you
are offered but refuse which you think may
have been offered to influence you.

Note – items in square brackets [x] refer to
recommendations made by the Committee on
Standards in Public Life and may be part of a
future Government consultation. This includes
possible future sanctions and appeals
processes.

Breaches of the
Code of Conduct
Most councillors conduct themselves
appropriately and in accordance with these
standards. Members have both individual
and collective responsibility to maintain these
standards, support expected behaviour
and challenge behaviour which falls below
expectations.
Section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 requires
relevant authorities to promote and maintain
high standards of conduct by members and
co-opted members of the authority. Each local
authority must publish a code of conduct,
and it must cover the registration of pecuniary
interests, the role of an ‘independent
person’, and sanctions to be imposed on any
councillors who breach the Code.
The 2011 Act also requires local authorities
to have mechanisms in place to investigate
allegations that a member has not complied
with the Code of Conduct, and arrangements
under which decisions on allegation may be
made.
Failure to comply with the requirements to
register or declare disclosable pecuniary
interests is a criminal offence. Taking part in
a meeting or voting, when prevented from
doing so by a conflict caused by disclosable
pecuniary interests, is also a criminal offence.
Political parties may have its own internal
standards and resolution procedures in
addition to the Member Code of Conduct
that members should be aware of.

6

Page
76of Conduct – consultation draft
Local Government Association Model Member
Code

Example
LGA guidance and
recommendations
Internal resolution
procedure
Councils must have in place an internal
resolution procedure to address conduct that
is in breach of the Member Code of Conduct.
The internal resolution process should
make it clear how allegations of breaches
of the Code of Conduct are to be handled,
including the role of an Independent Person,
the appeals process and can also include
a local standards committee. The internal
resolution procedure should be proportionate,
allow for members to appeal allegations and
decisions, and allow for an escalating scale
of intervention. The procedure should be
voted on by the council as a whole.

Where serious misconduct affects an
employee, a member may be barred from
contact with that individual; or if it relates to a
specific responsibility of the council, barred
from participating in decisions or information
relating to that responsibility.

In the case of a non-criminal breach of the
Code, the following escalating approach can
be undertaken.
If the breach is confirmed and of a serious
nature, action can be automatically escalated.
1. an informal discussion with the monitoring
officer or appropriate senior officer
2. an informal opportunity to speak with
the affected party/ies
3. a written apology
4. mediation
5. peer support
6. requirement to attend relevant training
7. where of a serious nature, a bar on
chairing advisory or special committees
for up to two months
8. where of a serious nature, a bar on
attending committees for up to two
months.

Page
77 Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft
Local Government Association
Model

7

Endnotes
1. CSPL recommend that “Section 27(2)
of the Localism Act 2011 should
be amended to state that a local
authority’s code of conduct applies to
a member when they claim to act, or
give the impression they are acting,
in their capacity as a member or as a
representative of the local authority”.
2. CSPL recommend that “councillors should
be presumed to be acting in an official
capacity in their public conduct, including
statements on publicly accessible social
media. Section 27(2) of the Localism Act
2011 should be amended to permit local
authorities to presume so when deciding
upon code of conduct breaches.”
3. Subject to footnotes 1 and 2 above
4. See CSPL website for further details
www.gov.uk/government/news/theprinciples-of-public-life-25-years
5.

8

ACAS’s definition of bullying

Page
78of Conduct – consultation draft
Local Government Association Model Member
Code

Appendices

Code Appendix A

Code Appendix B

The principles are :

Registering interests
1. Within 28 days of this Code of Conduct
being adopted by the council or your
election or appointment to office (where
that is later) you must register with the
Monitoring Officer the interests which
fall within the categories set out in Table
1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) and
Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests).

Selflessness
Holders of public office should act solely
in terms of the public interest.
Integrity
Holders of public office must avoid placing
themselves under any obligation to people or
organisations that might try inappropriately to
influence them in their work. They should not
act or take decisions in order to gain financial
or other material benefits for themselves, their
family, or their friends. They must declare and
resolve any interests and relationships.
Objectivity
Holders of public office must act and take
decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the
best evidence and without discrimination or bias.
Accountability
Holders of public office are accountable to
the public for their decisions and actions
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny
necessary to ensure this.
Openness
Holders of public office should act and take
decisions in an open and transparent manner.
Information should not be withheld from
the public unless there are clear and lawful
reasons for so doing.
Honesty
Holders of public office should be truthful.
Leadership
Holders of public office should exhibit these
principles in their own behaviour. They should
actively promote and robustly support the
principles and be willing to challenge poor
behaviour wherever it occurs.

2. You must ensure that your register of
interests is kept up-to-date and within
28 days of becoming aware of any
new interest in Table 1 or 2, or of any
change to a registered interest, notify the
Monitoring Officer.
Declaring interests
3. Where a matter arises at a meeting
which directly relates to an interest in
Table 1, you must declare the interest,
not participate in any discussion or vote
on the matter and must not remain in the
room unless granted a dispensation. If it
is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to
declare the nature of the interest.
4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which
directly relates to an interest in Table 2,
you must declare the interest. You may
speak on the matter only if members of
the public are also allowed to speak at the
meeting but otherwise must not take part
in any discussion or vote on the matter
and must not remain in the room unless
you have been granted a dispensation. If
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have
to declare the nature of the interest.

Page
79 Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft
Local Government Association
Model

9

5. Where a matter arises at a meeting which
directly relates to your financial interest
or well-being (and is not a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest) or a financial interest
or well-being of a relative or close
associate, you must declare the interest.
You may speak on the matter only if
members of the public are also allowed
to speak at the meeting but otherwise
must not take part in any discussion or
vote on the matter and must not remain in
the room unless you have been granted a
dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’,
you do not have to declare the nature of
the interest.
6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which
affects –
a. your own financial interest or well-being;
b. a financial interest or well-being of a
friend, relative, close associate; or
c. a body covered by table 1 below
you must disclose the interest.
7. Where the matter affects the financial
interest or well-being to a greater extent
than it affects the financial interests of
the majority of inhabitants of the ward
affected by the decision and a reasonable
member of the public knowing all the
facts would believe that it would affect
your view of the wider public interest you
must declare the interest. You may speak
on the matter only if members of the
public are also allowed to speak at the
meeting but otherwise must not take part
in any discussion or vote on the matter
and must not remain in the room unless
you have been granted a dispensation. If
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have
to declare the nature of the interest.

10

Page
80of Conduct – consultation draft
Local Government Association Model Member
Code

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Subject

Description

Employment, office,
trade, profession or
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit
or gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the
council) made to the councillor during the previous 12-month period for
expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a councillor,
or towards his/her election expenses.

[Any unpaid directorship.]

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act
1992.
Contracts

Any contract made between the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner
or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil
partners (or a firm in which such person is a partner, or an incorporated
body of which such person is a director* or a body that such person has a
beneficial interest in the securities of*) and the council —
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be
executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land and Property

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the council.
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land
which does not give the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or
the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/
civil partners (alone or jointly with another) a right to occupy or to receive
income.

Licences

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the
council for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the council; and
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or his/her spouse or civil partner
or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/
civil partners is a partner of or a director* of or has a beneficial interest in
the securities* of.

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body where—
(a) that body (to the councillor’s knowledge) has a place of business or
land in the area of the council; and
(b) either—
(i) the total nominal value of the securities* exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the councillor, or his/
her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the councillor is living
as if they were spouses/civil partners has a beneficial interest exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Page
81 Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft
Local Government Association
Model

11

*’director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident
society.
*’securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building
society.
Table 2: Other Registerable Interests
Any Body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to
which you are appointed or nominated by the council;
Any Body—

(a) exercising functions of a public nature;
(b) directed to charitable purposes; or
(c) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public
opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union)

of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management.

12

Page
82of Conduct – consultation draft
Local Government Association Model Member
Code

Page 83

Local Government Association
18 Smith Square
London SW1P 3HZ
Telephone 020 7664 3000
Fax 020 7664 3030
Email info@local.gov.uk
www.local.gov.uk

© Local Government Association, May 2020

For a copy in Braille, larger print or audio,
please contact us on 020 7664 3000.
We consider requests on an individual basis.
REF 11.197

Page 84

THIS FORM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY - DO NOT COMPLETE
PLEASE USE THE ONLINE SURVEY FORM TO SUBMIT YOUR RESPONSE

LGA Consultation on Draft Model Member Code of Conduct
Thank you for taking the time to complete this consultation. This Model Member Code of
Conduct [Model Member Code of Conduct.pdf] aims to be concise, written in plain English and
be understandable to members, officers and the public. The Model Member Code is designed to
aid members in all tiers of local government model the behaviours and high standards that
anyone would expect from a person holding public office. Equally, it articulates behaviour which
falls below the standards that would be expected of council members. It is designed to help set
a framework for public and councillor interaction, emphasising the importance of civility and that
councillors should be protected from bullying, intimidation and abuse.
The LGA has reviewed the existing Model Member Code of Conduct and updated it here
incorporating the recommendations from the Committee on Standard’s in Public Life’s
recommendations on Local Government Ethical Standards and the representation from its
membership. Part of the Committee’s recommendations were the introduction of sanctions for
breaches of the code, alongside an appeals process. This aspect is out of scope of this
consultation, as it requires legislative changes by Government, but the LGA has sought to
reflect some of the possible changes by using square brackets where legal changes would be
necessary. The LGA is continuing to take soundings from the sector on the issue of sanctions in
anticipation of a Government response to the Committee’s recommendations.
This consultation addresses key areas that the LGA would like a view on to help finalise the
Code. It is aimed at councillors and officers from all tiers of local government. If you would like a
wider discussion about the code, please do sign up to one of the forthcoming Webinars the LGA
are holding as part of this consultation. Details will be posted on our LGA events website.
Instructions and privacy notice
You can navigate through the questions using the buttons at the bottom of each page. Use the
'previous' button at the bottom of the page if you wish to amend your response to an earlier
question.
All responses will be treated confidentially. Information will be aggregated, and no individual or
authority will be identified in any publications without your consent. Identifiable information may
be used internally within the LGA but will only be held and processed in accordance with
our privacy policy. We are undertaking this consultation to aid the legitimate interests of the LGA
in supporting and representing authorities.
Please complete your response in one go - if you exit before submitting your response your
answers may be lost. If you would like to see an overview of the questions before completing
the consultation online, you can access a PDF here.

Page 85

About you

Your name ________________________________________________________________

Are you...

o A councillor
o An officer
o Answering on behalf of a whole council (Please provide council name below)
________________________________________________

o Other (please specify below)
________________________________________________

Please indicate your council type

o Community/Neighbourhood/Parish/Town
o District/Borough
o County
o Metropolitan/Unitary/London Borough
o Other (please specify below)
________________________________________________

Application of the Code
Under the Localism Act 2012, the Code of Conduct applies to councillors only when they are
acting in their capacity as a member. The LGA believes that because councillors are elected by
the public and widely recognised by the public, it makes sense for them to continue to model
these behaviours when they are making public comment, are identifying as a councillor and
when it would be reasonable for the public to identify them as acting or speaking as a councillor.
The Committee on Standards in Public Life supported this approach in their report into Local
Government Ethical Standards. Whilst the LGA is waiting for Government’s response to these
recommendations the option has been added in square brackets as it would need changes in
legislation.

Page 86

Q1. To what extent do you support the proposal that councillors demonstrate the
behaviours set out in the Code when they are publicly acting as, identifying as, and/or
giving the impression that they are acting as a councillor, including when representing
their council on official business and when using social media?

o To a great extent
o To a moderate extent
o To a small extent
o Not at all
o Don't know/prefer not to say
Q1a. If you would like to elaborate on your answer please do so here:
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________

Q2. Is it sufficiently clear which parts of the Model Code are legal requirements, which
are obligations, and which are guidance?

o Yes
o No
o Don't know
Q3. Do you prefer the use of the personal tense, as used in the Code, or would you prefer
the passive tense?

o Personal tense (“I will”)
o Passive tense (“Councillors should”)
o No preference
Specific obligations
The Code lists 12 specific obligations – these set out a minimum standard councillors are asked
to adhere to.

Page 87

Each obligation or group of obligations is put into a wider context to explain why that particular
obligation is important.
Q4. To what extent to you support the 12 specific obligations?
To a great
extent

To a
moderate
extent

1. Treating other councillors and
members of the public with
civility.
2. Treating council employees,
employees and representatives
of partner organisations and
those volunteering for the
councils with civility and
respecting the role that they
play.
3. Not bullying or harassing any
person.
4. Not compromising, or
attempting to compromise, the
impartiality of anyone who
works for, or on behalf of, the
council.
5. Not disclosing information
given to me in confidence or
disclosing information acquired
by me which I believe is of a
confidential nature, unless I
have received the consent of a
person authorised to give it or I
am required by law to do so.
6. Not preventing anyone
getting information that they are
entitled to by law.
7. Not bringing my role or
council into disrepute.
8. Not using, or attempting to
use, my position improperly to
the advantage or disadvantage
of myself or anyone else.

Page 88

To a small
extent

Not at all

Don't know
/ Prefer not
to say

9. Not misusing council
resources.
10. Registering and declaring
my interests.
11. Not accepting significant
gifts or hospitality from persons
seeking to acquire, develop or
do business with the council or
from persons who may apply to
the council for any permission,
licence or other significant
advantage.
12. Registering with the
monitoring officer any gift or
hospitality with an estimated
value of at least £25 within 28
days of its receipt.

Q5. If you would like to propose additional or alternative obligations, or would like to
provide more comment on a specific obligation, please do so here:
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________

Q6. Would you prefer to see the obligations as a long list followed by the guidance, or as
it is set out in the current draft, with the guidance after each obligation?

o As a list
o Each specific obligation followed by its relevant guidance
o No preference

Page 89

Q7. To what extent to you think the concept of ‘acting with civility’ is sufficiently clear?

o To a great extent
o To a moderate extent
o To a small extent
o Not at all
o Don't know/prefer not to say
Q7a. If you would like to suggest an alternative phrase that captures the same meaning,
or would like to provide a comment on this concept, please do so here:
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________

Q8. To what extent do you think the concept of ‘bringing the council into disrepute’ is
sufficiently clear?

o To a great extent
o To a moderate extent
o To a small extent
o Not at all
o Don't know/prefer not to say
Q8a. If you would like to suggest an alternative phrase that captures the same meaning,
or would like to provide a comment on this concept, please do so here:
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________

Page 90

Q9. To what extent do you support the definition of bullying and harassment used in the
code in a local government context?

o To a great extent
o To a moderate extent
o To a small extent
o Not at all
o Don't know/prefer not to say
Q9a. If there are other definitions you would like to recommend, please provide them
here.
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________

Q10. Is there sufficient reference to the use of social media?

o Yes
o No
o Don't know/prefer not to say
Q10a. Should social media be covered in a separate code or integrated into the overall
code of conduct?

o Separate code
o Integrated into the code
o Don't know/prefer not to say
Q10b. If you would like to make any comments or suggestions in relation to how the use
of social media is covered in the code please do so here:
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________

Page 91

Registration and declarations of interests
The law at present requires, as a minimum, registration and declaration of ‘Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests’ - that is matters which directly relate to the councillor and their partner if
applicable.
The LGA is proposing that all councillors are required to declare interests where matters also
relate to or affect other family members or associates. The LGA has broadened the requirement
to declare interests beyond this current statutory minimum in line with a recommendation from
the Committee on Standards in Public Life. These specific provisions are set out in Appendix
B of the Code.

Q11. To what extent to you support the code going beyond the current requirement to
declare interests of the councillor and their partner?

o To a great extent
o To a moderate extent
o To a small extent
o Not at all
o Don't know/prefer not to say
Q11a. If you would like to elaborate on your answer please do so here:
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________

Q12. Should the requirement to declare interests be in the main body of the code or in
the appendix where the draft model code currently references it?

o In the main body of the code
o In the appendix
o Other (please specify below)
o Don't know/prefer not to say
Page 92

Q12a. If you would like to make any comments or suggestions in relation to how the
requirement to declare interests is covered in the code please do so here:
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________

It is also suggested that more outside interests should be registered than is the current statutory
minimum. These are set out in Table 2 of the Appendix and are designed to demonstrate to
the community transparency about other bodies with which the councillor is engaged.
Q13. To what extent do you support the inclusion of these additional categories for
registration?
To a
great
extent

To a
moderate
extent

To a
small
extent

Not at
all

Don't know
/ Prefer not
to say

Any organisation, association, society
or party of which you are a member or
in a position of general control or
management and to which you are
appointed or nominated by the council
Any organisation, association, society
or party that exercises functions of a
public nature of which you are a
member or in a position of general
control or management
Any organisation, association, society
or party directed to charitable purposes
Any organisation, association, society
or party of whose principal purposes
includes the influence of public opinion
or policy (including any political party or
trade union)

Q13a. If you would like to propose additional or alternative categories for registration, please
provide them here:
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________

Page 93

Q14. To what extent to you support the proposed requirement that councillors do not
accept significant gifts as set out in Obligation 11?

o To a great extent
o To a moderate extent
o To a small extent
o Not at all
o Don't know/prefer not to say
Q14a. If you would like to elaborate on your answer please do so here:
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________

Q15. The draft code proposes £25 as the threshold for registering gifts and hospitality. Is
this an appropriate threshold?

o Yes
o Yes, but the amount should be reviewed annually with the code’s review
o No, it should be lower (please specify amount) ____________________
o No, it should be higher (please specify amount) ___________________
o Don't know/prefer not to say
Q16. The LGA will be producing accompanying guidance to the code. Which of the
following types of guidance would you find most useful? Please rank 1-5, with 1 being
the most useful.
______ Regularly updated examples of case law
______ Explanatory guidance on the code
______ Case studies and examples of good practice
______ Supplementary guidance that focuses on specific areas, e.g., social media
______ Improvement support materials, such as training and e-learning packages

Page 94

Q16a. If you would like to suggest any other accompanying guidance please do so here:
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________

Q17. If you would like to make any further comments about the code please so here:
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________

Once you press the 'Submit' button below, you will have completed your response.
Many thanks for taking the time to respond to this consultation. You are in control of any
personal data that you have provided to us in your response. You can contact us at all times to
have your information changed or deleted. You can find our full privacy policy here: click here to
see our privacy policy

Page 95

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix C

LGA Consultation on Draft Model Member Code of Conduct
Proposed Consultation Response from Babergh and Mid Suffolk District Council
About You
Your name: Emily Yule – Monitoring Officer
Are you...
A councillor
An officer
Answering on behalf of a whole council (Please provide council name below)
Babergh District Council and Mid Suffolk District Council
Other (please specify below)
Please indicate your council type
Community/Neighbourhood/Parish/Town
District/Borough
County
Metropolitan/Unitary/London Borough
Other (please specify below)
Application of the Code
Under the Localism Act 2012, the Code of Conduct applies to councillors only when they
are acting in their capacity as a member. The LGA believes that because councillors are
elected by the public and widely recognised by the public, it makes sense for them to
continue to model these behaviours when they are making public comment, are
identifying as a councillor and when it would be reasonable for the public to identify them
as acting or speaking as a councillor. The Committee on Standards in Public Life
supported this approach in their report into Local Government Ethical Standards. Whilst
the LGA is waiting for Government’s response to these recommendations the option has
been added in square brackets as it would need changes in legislation

Page 97

Appendix C

Q1. To what extent do you support the proposal that councillors
demonstrate the behaviours set out in the Code when they are publicly
acting as, identifying as, and/or giving the impression that they are
acting as a councillor, including when representing their council on
official business and when using social media?
To a great extent
To a moderate extent
To a small extent
Not at all
Don't know/prefer not to say

Q1a. If you would like to elaborate on your answer please do so here:
Under the current arrangements it can be very difficult for the Monitoring Officer to
establish ‘capacity’ when considering code of conduct complaints – i.e. was the
Councillor acting in an official capacity or in a private capacity. This is particularly
relevant to complaints involving social media activity. In many cases it is difficult to
prove official capacity and therefore the complaint cannot be upheld. This can be very
unsatisfactory to the complainant and the public who often consider that any public
activity by Councillors should be covered by the Code of Conduct.

Q2. Is it sufficiently clear which parts of the Model Code are legal
requirements, which are obligations, and which are guidance?
Yes
No
Don't know

Q3. Do you prefer the use of the personal tense, as used in the Code, or
would you prefer the passive tense?
Personal tense (“I will”)
Passive tense (“Councillors should”)
No preference

Page 98

Appendix C

Specific obligations
The Code lists 12 specific obligations – these set out a minimum standard
councillors are asked to adhere to.Each obligation or group of obligations is put
into a wider context to explain why that particular obligation is important.
Q4. To what extent to you support the 12 specific obligations?
To a
great
extent
1. Treating other councillors
and members of the public
with civility.



2.
Treating
council
employees, employees and
representatives of partner
organisations and those
volunteering for the councils
with civility and respecting
the role that they play.



3. Not bullying or harassing
any person.



4. Not compromising, or
attempting to compromise,
the impartiality of anyone
who works for, or on behalf
of, the council.



5. Not disclosing information
given to me in confidence or
disclosing
information
acquired by me which I
believe is of a confidential
nature, unless I have
received the consent of a
person authorised to give it
or I am required by law to do
so.



6. Not preventing anyone
getting information that they
are entitled to by law.



To a
moderate
extent

Page 99

To a
small
extent

Not at all

Don't know
/ Prefer not
to say

Appendix C

7. Not bringing my role
or
council
into
disrepute.



8. Not using, or attempting to
use, my position improperly
to
the
advantage
or
disadvantage of myself or
anyone else.



9. Not misusing
resources.



council

10.
Registering
and
declaring my interests.



11. Not accepting significant
gifts or hospitality from
persons seeking to acquire,
develop or do business with
the council or from persons
who may apply to the council
for any permission, licence
or
other
significant
advantage.



12. Registering with the
monitoring officer any gift or
hospitality with an estimated
value of at least £25 within
28 days of its receipt.



Q5. If you would like to propose additional or alternative obligations, or would
like to provide more comment on a specific obligations, please do so here:
All of the obligations make sense, however putting them in context (with examples and
relevant case law) is essential in respect of being able to adequately assess whether
the code has been breached. Members of the public need greater clarity about what
these obligations mean in practice so that they have a better understanding of when it
is appropriate to make a complaint.
The description of ‘disrepute’ is not clear enough and provides too wide an umbrella
under which complaints have can be made. This is a very subjective definitive and is
open to varying interpretations.

Page 100

Appendix C

Q6. Would you prefer to see the obligations as a long list followed by the
guidance, or as it is set out in the current draft, with the guidance after each
obligation?
As a list
Each specific obligation followed by its relevant guidance
No preference
Q7. To what extent to you think the concept of ‘acting with civility’ is sufficiently
clear?
To a great extent
To a moderate extent
To a small extent
Not at all
Don't know/prefer not to say

Q7a. If you would like to suggest an alternative phrase that captures the
same meaning, or would like to provide a comment on this concept,
please do so here:
The definition doesn’t adequately capture the protections provided to
Councillors in respect of the ‘cut and thrust’ of robust political debate, which
have been tested in case law.
Q8. To what extent do you think the concept of ‘bringing the council
into disrepute’ is sufficiently clear?
To a great extent
To a moderate extent
To a small extent
Not at all
Don't know/prefer not to say

Q8a. If you would like to suggest an alternative phrase that captures the
same meaning, or would like to provide a comment on this concept,

Page 101

Appendix C

please do so here:
This could be better described as conduct which undermines public trust and
confidence in you or the local authority.
Q9. To what extent do you support the definition of bullying and
harassment used in the code in a local government context?
To a great extent
To a moderate extent
To a small extent
Not at all
Don't know/prefer not to say
Q9a. If there are other definitions you would like to recommend,
please provide them here.
No other definition proposed
Q10. Is there sufficient reference to the use of social media?
Yes
No
Don't know/prefer not to say

Q10a. Should social media be covered in a separate code or integrated
into the overall code of conduct?
Separate code
Integrated into the code
Don't know/prefer not to say

Q10b. If you would like to make any comments or suggestions in relation
to how the use of social media is covered in the code please do so here:
There is an increasing need for clearer guidance for Councillors about appropriate
conduct on social media both to ensure a high standard of conduct by Councillors, to
enable Councillors to challenge the inappropriate behaviour of others on social media

Page 102

Appendix C

and to provide protection to Councillors from social media ‘trolling’. This needs to be
integrated in the code, but the level of detail required would more appropriately be
provided in a supplement to the code – not a separate social media code.
Registration and declarations of interests
The law at present requires, as a minimum, registration and declaration of
‘Disclosable Pecuniary Interests’ - that is matters which directly relate to the
councillor and their partner if applicable.
The LGA is proposing that all councillors are required to declare interests
where matters also relate to or affect other family members or associates. The
LGA has broadened the requirement to declare interests beyond this current
statutory minimum in line with a recommendation from the Committee on
Standards in Public Life. These specific provisions are set out in Appendix B
of the Code.

Q11. To what extent to you support the code going beyond the current
requirement to declare interests of the councillor and their partner?
To a great extent
To a moderate extent
To a small extent
Not at all
Don't know/prefer not to say

Q11a. If you would like to elaborate on your answer please do so here:
The code needs to provide greater clarity about the definitions of ‘family member’ and
‘close associate’.
Q12. Should the requirement to declare interests be in the main body
of the code or in the appendix where the draft model code currently
references it?
In the main body of the code
In the appendix
Other (please specify below)
Don't know/prefer not to say

Page 103

Appendix C

Q12a. If you would like to make any comments or suggestions in relation to how
the requirement to declare interests is covered in the code please do so here:
It is also suggested that more outside interests should be registered than is the current
statutory minimum. These are set out in Table 2 of the Appendix and are designed
to demonstrate to the community transparency about other bodies with which the
councillor is engaged.
Q13. To what extent do you support the inclusion of these additional categories
for registration?
To a
great
extent

Any organisation, association,
society or party of which you are a
member or in a position of general
control or management and to
which you are appointed or
nominated by the council
Any organisation, association,
society or party that exercises
functions of a public nature of
which you are a member or in a
position of general control or
management
Any
organisation,
association,
society or party directed to
charitable purposes
Any
organisation,
association,
society or party of whose principal
purposes includes the influence of
public opinion or policy (including
any political party or trade union)

To a
moderate
extent

To a
small
extent

Not at
all

Don't know
/ Prefer
not to say









Q13a. If you would like to propose additional or alternative categories for
registration, please provide them here:
Membership of
Freemasons.

any ‘closed

membership’

Page 104

organisations

such

as

Appendix C

Q14. To what extent to you support the proposed requirement that
councillors do not accept significant gifts as set out in Obligation 11?
To a great extent
To a moderate extent
To a small extent
Not at all
Don't know/prefer not to say

Q14a. If you would like to elaborate on your answer please do so here:
It would provide greater clarity for all parties if the default position was to reject all
offers of gifts and hospitality unless in a civic role or only when the Councillor is acting
as the appointed representative of the Council.
Q15. The draft code proposes £25 as the threshold for registering gifts
and hospitality. Is this an appropriate threshold?
Yes
Yes, but the amount should be reviewed annually with the code’s review
No, it should be lower (please specify amount) All gifts and hospitality should be
registered regardless of the value
No, it should be higher (please specify amount)
Don't know/prefer not to say

Q16. The LGA will be producing accompanying guidance to the code.
Which of the following types of guidance would you find most useful?
Please rank 1-5, with 1 being the most useful.
Regularly updated examples of case law 4
Explanatory guidance on the code 1
Case studies and examples of good practice 5
Supplementary guidance that focuses on specific areas, e.g., social media 2
Improvement support materials, such as training and e-learning packages 3

Page 105

Appendix C

Q16a. If you would like to suggest any other accompanying guidance please do
so here:
Q17. If you would like to make any further comments about the code please do
so here:
The proposed model code does not adequately deal with the issues of
predetermination and bias which are often more relevant than the disclosure of
interests. There needs to be clearer guidance around what constitutes
predetermination particularly in reference to those Councillors who hold office for
multiple authorities and may be considering a matter in more than one capacity.
One of the key challenges for Monitoring Officers when applying and upholding the
code is the lack of sanctions available and the perceived ‘lack of teeth’ that the code
has. Members of the public are often left feeling that the complaints process has been
ineffective in dealing with the improper conduct. It is disappointing that the model code
has not taken into account the Committee on Standards in Public Life’s
recommendations on suspensions. This could have been an effective sanction in
demonstrating that the complaints process has weight, provided that the safeguards
were in place to ensure its appropriate use.
The proposed code does not provide enough protection for Councillors from persistent
and vexatious complaints. Monitoring Officers receive large volumes of complaints
and often the process is misused by complainants – often attempting to use the
conduct route when other complaints processes have failed and making complaints
that are about process or service standards rather than conduct. Local authorities
currently have to use local policies and procedures to deal with persistent and
vexatious complainants but would have greater authority to reject frivolous complaints
if there was provision in the model code.

Page 106

Agenda Item 10
BABERGH AND MID SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCILS
TO:

Joint Audit and Standards
Committee

REPORT NUMBER:

FROM: Corporate Manager –
Democratic Services

JAC/19/26

DATE OF MEETING: 11th August 2020

JOINT AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN

Date of Committee – 11 August 2020
Topic

Purpose

Lead Officer

End of Year Risk Position
Statement

For comment and agreement

Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit

Treasury Management
Outturn for 2019/20

To note and make
Recommendations to both full
Councils

Corporate Manager –
Financial Services

Consultation on the New
Model Code of Conduct

To agree a response to the
consultation on the new Model
Code of Conduct

Monitoring Officer

Date of Committee – 28 September 2020
Topic

Purpose

Lead Officer

Constitutional Update

To agree any Constitutional
amendments as reported by
the Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Complaints Monitoring report

To note

Monitoring Officer

Date of Committee – 30 November 2020
Topic

Purpose

Lead Officer

Treasury Management Half
Year Report 2020/21

To note and make
Recommendations to both full
Councils

Corporate Manager –
Financial Services

Interim Internal Audit Report
2020/21

To note the progress of the
Audit Plan

Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit

Audited Statement of
Accounts 2019/20 (Latest)

To Note

Ernst and Young

Page 107

Topic

Purpose

Lead Officer

Constitutional Update

To agree any Constitutional
amendments as reported by
the Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Complaints Monitoring report

To note

Monitoring Officer

Date of Committee – 25 January 2021
Topic

Purpose

Lead Officer

Joint Capital, Investment and
Treasury Management
Strategies 2021/22

To note and make
Recommendations to both full
Councils

Cabinet Members Finance

Certification of Claims and
Returns Annual Report
2019/20

To note

Ernst and Young

Joint Audit Plan 2019/20

To note

Ernst and Young

Statement of Accounts and
Auditors Report 2019/20

To approve the final audited
Statements of Accounts and
the joint external auditor’s
report for 2019/20

Corporate Manager –
Financial Services

Constitutional Update

To agree any Constitutional
amendments as reported by
the Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Complaints Monitoring report

To note

Monitoring Officer

Date of Committee – 29 March 2021
Topic

Purpose

Lead Officer

Joint Annual Audit Letter for
2019/20

For comment and agreement

Corporate Manager –
Financial Services

Managing the Risk of Fraud
and Corruption - Annual
Report

For comment and agreement

Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit

Internal Audit Plan 2020/21

For comment and agreement

Corporate Manager –
Internal Audit

Page 108

Topic

Purpose

Lead Officer

External Audit Interim
Update Report 2019/20

To note

Ernst and Young

Constitutional Update

To agree any Constitutional
amendments as reported by
the Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Complaints Monitoring report

To note

Monitoring Officer

Date of Committee – 17 May 2021
Topic

Purpose

Lead Officer

Constitutional Update

To agree any Constitutional
amendments as reported by
the Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Complaints Monitoring report

To note

Monitoring Officer

Date of Committee – 29 July 2021
Topic
Non Salary Expenses –
2020/21

Purpose
To Note

Lead Officer
Corporate Manager –
Financial Services

Constitutional Update

To agree any Constitutional
amendments as reported by
the Monitoring Officer

Monitoring Officer

Complaints Monitoring report

To note

Monitoring Officer

Page 109

This page is intentionally left blank

